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Discretely presented component units are reported in separate columns in the government-
wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary
government and to differentiate their financial position and results of operations from the
primary government. The School Board of the City of Colonial Heights is reported as a
discretely presented component unit.

Additional information on the City’s financial status can be found in the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis section of this report.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The City, with a land area of 8.14 square miles, is located in southeastern Virginia. The City
is strategically located on Interstate 95 near its intersection with interstates, 185 and 164,
thus giving the City access to the East Coast's major markets.

The City is less than 20 miles south of Virginia's state capital, Richmond, and 120 miles
south of the nation's capital, Washington, D.C. The City of Petersburg lies just across the
Appomattox River which bisects the two cities, with Colonial Heights on the north bank.
Richmond's deepwater terminal is approximately 15 miles north and the ports at Hampton
Roads are some 80 miles to the southeast.

The population of the City is estimated at 17,693 as projected by the Virginia Employment
Commission. The City is part of the Richmond Tri-Cities Metropolitan Statistical Area and
as such has immediate access to the area’s dynamic business complex. Richmond is a
center for manufacturing, distribution and trade. State and Federal offices are located in
Richmond and the area houses numerous corporate headquarters.

In the immediate Tri-Cities area (Petersburg, Colonial Heights and Hopewell), government
continues to be a major employer. Government facilities include Central State Hospital,
Southside Virginia Training Center, Richard Bland College, and the United States Army
Quartermaster Center and Fort Lee.

The City has a civilian labor force of 9,467 and an unemployment rate of 8.7%. The
surrounding labor pool consists of tens of thousands of workers representing the entire
spectrum of occupational groups and training opportunities in the area are abundant.

The City's goal is to promote development and expansion of a diversified business base to
enhance the quality and standard of living through expanded job opportunities and tax
base.

The City has seen 2.4 million square feet of retail, office and service industry development
in the City’s regionally based commercial center area known as “Southpark”. Beginning with
the opening of the area’s only regional mall in 1989, the area has become a Mecca for giant
retailers, specialty retailers and office seekers. The City currently has seen an additional
hotel completed with a second hotel nearing completion. The area continues to expand with
a current and additional planned expansion of existing big box stores. Transportation
access and diversity have been two key elements of the area’s sustained success. The
City’s older retail areas along the US1/301 corridor continue to benefit from the increased
exposure of the City’s regional emphasis.



The City's Capital Improvement Program is centered on infrastructure improvements to
update or expand the current services. Other major projects include the renovation and
expansion of the current courts building, and the replacement and improvement of
infrastructure.

The closure of the former landfill has been completed and approved by the Virginia
Department of Waste Management. This has opened up additional land for development in
the Southpark commercial center.

The City has endured the past economic challenges by maintaining a good local tax base
that softened the effects of the Commonwealth’s budget and economic cutbacks. This
year's financial operations continued all basic current services, but reduced operating
expenditures by an average of 5% and reduced the replacement of Capital items. The City
continues to adhere to a conservative budget in order to keep existing programs funded and
salaries of public employees competitive while dealing with budgetary challenges.

The City's Fund Balance policy of an undesignated fund balance of 12% of the City's
General Fund Balance had been exceeded in the past years to provide a rainy day fund in
case of economic downturns. One percent of this excess was utilized in the fiscal year 2010
budget preparation.

Accounting System and Budgetary Controls

In developing and refining the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the
adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to
provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance regarding (a) the safeguarding of assets
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and (b) the reliability of financial records
for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (a) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived and (b) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. The City's internal
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of
proper recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary control is maintained at the department line-item level by the encumbrance of
estimated purchase amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. Purchase
orders which result in an overrun of line item balances are not released until funds are
appropriated or transferred to the specific line item. Open encumbrances are recorded as
reservation of fund balances at June 30, 2009.

As required by law, each year the City Manager submits to City Council a recommended
budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1. After an extensive budget study process and a
public hearing to receive citizen input, City Council makes its decision on the adopted
budget.



City of Colonial Heights Pension Plan

The City contributes to the Virginia Retirement System, an agent and cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan, which covers all City employees.

Capital Financing and Debt Service

The City’s Financial Management policies were adopted by City Council in 1995 and
formally reviewed in 1999 and 2003. Included in these policies are the following debt
guidelines: General Fund supported long-term debt will not exceed 4% of assessed value
of real estate, General Fund supported long-term debt will not exceed 10% of governmental
fund expenditures, and minimum amortization of General Fund supported long-term debt
will be 50% within 10 years. The City monitors these ratios to ensure ongoing compliance
with the debt policy.

The Constitution of Virginia establishes a debt limit for Virginia cities of 10% of the assessed
value of real estate. The City of Colonial Heights could incur debt in the amount of’
$170,268,252, but has currently utilized 16.95% of its debt obligatory capacity.

Long-term liabilities, excluding notes payable, compensated absences, retirement incentive
programs and environmental liabilities, for all funds of the primary government as of June
30, 2009, totaled $28,855,000, of which $1,999,892 for Enterprise Fund purposes is
considered self-supporting and shown only as a liability of the respective fund.

The City’s bonds were maintained by all three rating agencies. These ratings are:

Moody’s Investors Standard Fitch Investors
Service & Poor's Service, Inc
A1 AA- AA-

The City annually develops a Capital Improvements Program. Submitted projects are
evaluated on a rating system using eleven criteria for funding recommendation. This annual
rating by administrative staff is evaluated and approved by the City’s Planning Commission
and submitted to the governing body for future funding consideration. This list is used to
allocate future bond and pay-as-you funding by the City.

Cash Management

The City follows the pooled cash concept, which maximizes investment flexibility, providing
the best possible investment return. Cash temporarily idle during the year is invested in
instruments as allowed by the Code of Virginia, Chapter 3, Title 26, and in accordance with
the City's investment policy. The objectives of this policy are to assure safety and
repayment of principal, provide flexibility to meet cash requirements, accomplish the
maximum investment of all available funds and allow the City to obtain the highest
competitive yield on investments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Members of City Council
City of Colonial Heights, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia (City), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed
in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Specifications for Audits of
Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of
Virginia. Those standards and specifications require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
auditincludes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinions. -

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 10, 2009 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, and other matiers. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



The Management's Discussion and Analysis (pages 11 to 19) and the required supplementary
information (pages 57 to 63) are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information and
schedules, as listed in the Table of Contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the
U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the Table of Contents, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial

statements. This information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

PB(’H,LLP

Harrisonburg, Virginia
December 10, 2009
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

The following discussion and analysis of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia (the City)
financial performance provides an overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009. It should be read in conjunction with the transmittal letter and the
City’s basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City's total net assets, excluding those of its component unit, on the government-wide
basis, totaled $37,696,479 at June 30, 2009. The City’s total net assets, excluding those of
its component unit, on the government-wide basis, totaled $37,696,479 at June 30, 2009. Of
this amount, $29,595,712 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt, which resuits in a
reported shortfall of $687,815 to meet ongoing obligations. The Code of Virginia requires the
School Board to hold title to the capital assets (buildings and equipment) due to their
responsibility for maintaining the asset, however in Virginia the School Board does not have
taxing authority and, therefore, it cannot incur debt through general obligation bonds to fund
the acquisition, construction or improvement to capital assets. This can result in an
inequitable distribution of capital assets and corresponding debt presentation in Virginia.
See the footnote presentation for further clarification. Of this amount, ($687,815) may be
used to meet ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, and $38,384,294 is invested in
capital assets, net of related debt.

On a government-wide basis for governmental activities, the City had expenses net of
program revenues of $38,084,619, which totaled $957,187 greater than the general
revenues of $37,127,432.

At June 30, 2009, the City's governmental funds balance sheet reported fund balances of
$12,307,558. Of this amount, $12,262,473 remains in the various governmental funds of the
City as unreserved.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic
financial statements. The City's financial statements present two types of statements, each
with a different snapshot of the City's finances. The focus is on both the City as a whole
(government-wide) and the fund financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the City's overall
financial status. The fund financials focus on the individual part of City government, reporting
the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements, which present a
longer-term view. Presentation of both perspectives provides the user a broader overview,
enhances the basis for comparisons, and better reflects the City's accountability.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities. These statements provide information about the City as a whole
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is the method used by most private-sector
enterprises. All current year revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of
Activities regardiess of when cash is received or paid. These statements allow readers to
answer the question, “Is the City’s position, as a whole, better or worse as a result of the
year's activities?”

11



One of the main goals of these two statements is to report the City’s net assets and changes
that affected net assets during the fiscal year. The change in the City's net assets, the
difference between assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the City’s financial health, or
financial position. Increases or decreases in net assets are indicators of whether the City's
financial health is improving or declining. Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the
City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure should also be considered
in assessing the overall financial health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City's activity is classified as
follows:

Governmental activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including general
government, judicial administration, public safety, public works, health and welfare, parks,
recreation and cultural and community development departments. Property taxes, other local
taxes, and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities - The City’s water, sewage and solid waste operations are reported
here as the City charges a fee to customers designed to cover all of the cost of services it
provides.

Component unit - The City includes a discretely presented component unit in this report, the
School Board of the City of Colonial Heights. Although legally separate, the component unit is
important because the City is financially accountable for it.

Fund Financial Statements

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statement
presentation more familiar. However, the focus is now on the City’s most significant funds as
well as fund types. The fund financial statements begin on page 22 and provide detailed
information about the most significant funds, not the City as a whole. The City has two types of
funds:

Governmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are included with the governmental
funds. Fund-based statements focus on how resources flow into and out of those funds and the
balances left at year-end that are available for future spending. These funds are reported on
the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and other liquid assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
overview that helps the reader determine the financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the City's programs. The differences between governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide and fund financial statements are reconciled in Exhibits C and
D on pages 23 and 25.

Proprietary funds — When the City charges customers for services it provides, whether to
outside customers or to other units of the City, these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, utilize the accrual
basis of accounting, and their statements provide both short and long-term financial information.

12



The City’s enterprise funds, one type of proprietary fund, are the same as the government-wide,
business-type activities; however, the fund financial statements provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows. The City’s enterprise funds are the Water, Sewer,
and Solid Waste funds.

The following table presents a condensed comparison of net assets:

Summary Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In Millions)
Total
Governmental =~ Business-type Primary Component
Activities Activities Government Unit

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Current and Other Assets $ 259 $ 28.8 $ 11 %$ 11 $270 $ 299 $ 77 % 83

Capital Assets, net 42.8 421 11.6 115 54.4 53.6 17.6 14.7
Total Assets 68.7 70.9 127 12.6 81.4 '83.5 25.3 23.0
Other Liabilities 16.7 18.9 0.8 0.7 16.5 19.6 4.7 3.8
Non-current Liabilities 25.3 23.4 1.9 2.1 27.2 25.5 0.2 1.2
Total Liabilities 41.0 42.3 2.7 2.8 43.7 451 4,9 5.0
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,

net of related debt 29.0 29.3 9.3 9.2 38.3 38.5 18.5 14.7
Restricted
Unrestricted (1.3) (0.7) 0.7 0.6 (0.8) (0.1) 1.9 3.3
Total Net Assets $27.7 $286 $100 $98 §$37.7 $384 $204 $18.0
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The City's combined net assets decreased from $38.4 million to $37.7 million. Net assets of the
governmental activities decreased by $0.9 million or 3.1%. As noted under Financial Highlights,
governmental activities unrestricted net assets, the portion of net assets that can be used to
finance the day-to-day operations of the City, reflect a deficit of $688,000 due to reporting of
School Assets and corresponding bonded debt. Invested in capital assets, net of related
deprecation and debt, represents the amount of capital assets owned by the City including
infrastructure, net of any outstanding debt used to fund the asset purchase or construction. Net
assets are reported as restricted when constraints on asset use are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, regulators, or are imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

The component unit net assets reflect an increase in City support due to the established funding
agreement with the School Board. The City agreement provides that the School system receive
50.73% of specified revenues. The increase also reflects increased amounts being established
for pay-as-you-go infrastructure maintenance.

The following table presents a condensed comparison of the changes in net assets:

Summary Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-type Total Primary Component
Activities Activities Government Unit
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $55 $53 $57 $52 $112 $105 $ 05 § 05
Operating grants and contributions 55 5.5 - - 5.5 55 15.8 14.4
Capital grants and contributions 0.1 - - - 0.1 - - -
General revenues.
Property taxes 211 20.3 - - 211 20.3 - -
Other local taxes 13.9 14.1 - - 13.9 14.1 - -
Payment from other governments - - - - - - 20.2 23.3
Intergovernmental, non-categorical aid 1.9 1.8 - - 1.9 1.8 - -
Use of money and property 0.2 0.7 - - 0.2 0.7 - 0.1
Miscellaneous 0.5 0.3 - - 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.3
Total revenues 48.7 48.0 5.7 5.2 54.4 53.2 36.8 38.6
Expenses:
General government 8.1 7.6 - - 8.1 7.6 - -
Judicial administration 4.4 4.4 - - 4.4 4.4 - -
Public safety 8.0 7.6 - - 8.0 7.5 - -
Public works 3.7 3.7 - - 3.7 3.7 - -
Health and welfare 0.6 0.7 - - 0.6 0.7 - -
Parks, recreation and cultural 2.4 24 - - 2.4 2.4 - -
Community development 0.6 0.6 - - 0.6 0.6 - -
Education 20.2 23.3 - - 20.2 23.3 344 33.1
Interest 1.2 1.1 - - 1.2 1.1 - -
Water, sewer and solid waste - - 5.9 5.6 5.9 5.6 - -
Total expenses 49.2 51.2 5.9 5.6 55.1 56.8 34.4 33.1
Change in Net Assets Before Transfers (0.5) (3.2) (.2) (0.4) 0.7) (3.6) 2.4 55
Transfers (0.4) (0.2) 04 0.2 - - - -
Change in Net Assets (0.9) (3.4) 0.2 (0.2) (0.7} (3.6) 2.4 5.5
Net Assets, beginning 28.6 32.0 9.8 10.0 38.4 42.0 18.0 12.5
Net Assets, ending $277 $28.6 $100 § 9.8 $37.7 $384 $204 5180
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The property tax classification, which comprised approximately 43.3% of total revenue
generated by governmental activities, includes real estate tax, the local portion of personal
property tax, and public services corporation taxes. Real estate tax revenue, the largest source
of revenue for the City totaled $17.9 million. The assessed value of real property in the City
increased 1.2% for the calendar year due to new construction.

In 1998, the Commonwealth enacted the Personal Property Tax Relief Act (PPTRA). The
Commonwealth’s share of personal property taxes allocated to the City was 65% of vehicle loan
values for the current fiscal year and is included in the intergovernmental category. Personal
property tax revenue, including the Commonwealth share, totaled $4.2 million for fiscal years
2009 and 2008. The net assessed value of taxable personal property decreased $5 million or
4.1% from 2008 to 2009 after an increase of $0.9 million from 2007 to 2008. Increased property
tax collections reflect increased collection procedures and changes in calculation of the PPTRA
percentage applied.

Sales taxes, utility taxes, business and professional occupational taxes, prepared food and
beverage taxes, transient room taxes, and utility taxes comprise the majority of other local taxes
collected by the City. Other taxes comprised approximately 28.5% of total revenues generated
for governmental activities.

Operating grants and contributions comprised approximately 11.3% of governmental activities
revenues. Street maintenance funds, funding received under House Bill 599 for law
enforcement, and reimbursement for shared expenses of the constitutional officers are some of
the major sources of revenue included in this category.

Charges for services include items such as EMS transport fees, court fees, inspection fees,
reimbursements for housing prisoners, and garbage collection fees. EMS fees remained neutral
and under projected revenues by $159,000 due to changes in insurance coverage percentages
of transported patients.

Revenue generated for governmental activities is presented below by category:

Operating Grants and

Charges for Services Contributions

12%
Intergovernmental Non- 11% o

categorical Aid
4%

\ Miscellaneous

0,
Other Local Taxes 1%

29%

Property Taxes
43%
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Public safety expenses comprised approximately 16.3% of expenses of the governmental
activities. Operations of the labor-intensive Police and Fire Departments are included in this
category, along with expenses of Emergency Medical Services, and Communications (E911
Call Center). Education expenses comprised 41.1% of governmental activities. Funding,
established by the revenue sharing agreement, of $18.8 million was provided to the City of
Colonial Heights School Board to support School operations. This reflects a reduction of
$395,000 from the budgeted estimated $19.2 million due to lower revenues collected by
revenue sharing agreement formula revenues.

Public Works and Health and Welfare expenses comprised approximately 7.5% and 1.2%
respectfully, of governmental activities expenses. Expenses for Building Maintenance, Street
Paving, and Street Maintenance are included in Public Works category. The City experienced
turnover in key personal positions, which resulted in salary lapse/benefit savings and slowdown
of some construction projects which resulted in a higher unexpended balance than traditionally
projected. The Comprehensive Services Act and social services programs incurred the majority
of expenses reported in the Health and Welfare category and reflect a decrease over last year.

Expenses of the governmental activities are shown by functional area:

General Government
17%

Judicial Administration
9%

Public Safety

Education 16%

41%

Health and Welfare Public Works

Community . 1% 8%
Parks, Recreation and °
Deve%c{;)/poment Cultural

5%

The net assets of business-type activities increased approximately $219,000 during 2009.

The current rate structure was increased by 10% and 15% for the Water and Sewer Funds,
respectively, for fiscal year 2010. No major changes in operations were experienced. The City
established and funded a new Stormwater Management Fund to deal with operational and
capital expenses for State and Federal mandates.

16



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the governmental funds reflect a total fund balance of
$12,307,558. Approximately $12.3 million of this amount constitutes unreserved fund balance,
which is available for spending services and capital projects. Unreserved fund balance is
designated to purchase capital equipment, pay claims, fund future debt service requirements,
pay for future years’ capital projects expenditures and encumbrances, which indicates that it has
already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders outstanding at year-end.

The City accounts for Solid Waste collection activities as a business-type activity. This included
the establishment of a multiyear rate structure increase to bring the operations to be self-
sufficient and not be a City supported service.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the General Fund unreserved fund balance was $8,639,265, while the total fund balance was
$8,684,350. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents approximately 16.2% of the total General Fund expenditures and other
financing uses, while total fund balance represents 16.3% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the General Fund decreased by $1,142,187 during the current fiscal year.
The General Fund begins each year with budgeted revenue and expenditure amounts that are
equal. This includes $933,000 transferred to the Capital Projects fund for one time capital
projects and reserve for future fire apparatus.

Local taxes generated the majority of General Fund revenue, totaling approximately $34.8
million in fiscal 2009. Increased current collections of personal property taxes helped offset an
additional non-budgeted $0.5 reduction in the Real Estate tax rate.

Intergovernmental revenue is the second largest source of General Fund revenues, generating
approximately $6.5 million in fiscal year 2009. The majority of this revenue is received from the
Commonwealth and includes law enforcement funding received under Virginia House Bill 599,
and street maintenance funds. This is a $42,000 decrease from fiscal year 2008. Most of the
decrease came from State requirement to participate in the Commonwealths revenue shortfall
by returned a prorated share of State revenues. Normal increases to base street maintenance
funds and the funding for Constitutional Offices were received. '

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND HIGHLIGHTS
The Capital Projects Fund reflects transfer of $933,000 in excess unrestricted General Fund
Balance for one-time capital project additions and continuing annual transfer of $150,000 for

future replacement of fire apparatus. Project expenditures totaled $3,282,360 which resulted in
a net change in fund balances of $2,198,020 for an ending fund balance of $3,623,208.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund revenues exceeded the original budgeted revenues by $42,794 and under final
budgeted revenues by $537,554 or 1.1%. Reductions in local sales tax collections and
business licenses were partially offset by increases in personal property taxes, food tax
revenues and a onetime refund from Riverside Regional Jail Authority. Under the Revenue
Sharing Agreement with the City’s School System, a portion of these revenue shortfalls were
also assumed by the component unit based on their percentage allocation of these revenues.

General Fund expenditures and transfers were greater than the original budget by $4,942,121,
and were greater than the final, amended budget by $3,200,278 or 6.4%. During fiscal year
2009, City Council amended the budget several times for increases to fund one-time capital
projects from General Fund Balance reserves, the awarding of donations and receipt of
operational grants. Budgetary numbers also include street resurfacing authorized that will not
be completed until the 2010 fiscal year. Debt Service also reflects the refinancing of a taxable
note with the 2009 General Obligation Bonds that was not budgeted.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2009, the City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
amounted to $54,401,040 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment includes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and structures, equipment and
infrastructure. The total net increase (additions less retirements and depreciation) in the City’s
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $773,126 or 1.4%.

Summary Statement of
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In Millions)
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Land $ 47 $ 46 $ 0.1 $ 041 $ 4.8 $ 47
Construction in Process 1.3 0.7 - - 1.3 0.7
Building and Structures 13.6 141 2.0 2.0 15.6 16.1
Infrastructure 18.9 18.1 8.5 8.6 27.4 26.7
Equipment 4.3 4.6 1.0 0.8 5.3 5.4
Total $42.8 $42.1 $11.6 $11.5 $54.4 $53.6

The changes in each category of Capital Assets are presented in detail in note 8 to the Basic

Financial Statements.

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following:

Expansion/renovation of an elementary school.

Storm drainage and road improvements southern end of City.

Road improvements northern end of City.

Recreational facilities projects.
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LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2009, the City’s long-term liabilities, not including compensated absences, totaled
$29,256,409 consisting of $27,010,820 related to governmental activities, and $2,245,589
related to business-type activities. This amount decreased by $2,260,181 during the fiscal year
as a result of normal debt retirement.

The City maintained ratings of AA-, AA- and A1 from Fitch Investors Service Inc., Standard &
Poor's Rating Service and Moody's Investor Service, respectively.

The Charter of the City and Code of Virginia limits the City’s net debt to 10% of the assessed
valuation of real estate. The City’s entity-wide debt of $28,855,000 is below the legal debt limit
of $170,268,252.

The School Board Component Unit relies upon the City to provide full faith and credit for any
debt obligations incurred. Therefore, the City reports School Board Component Unit long-term
liabilities, other than compensated absences, as its own. In addition to bonded debt, the City’s
long-term obligations include compensated absences. Additional information concerning the
City’s long-term liabilities is presented in note 9 to the Basic Financial Statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The unemployment rate for the City at June 30, 2009 was 8.7%, compared to a June 30, 2008
rate of 4.8%. This is above the state average of 7.3% and compares favorably with the national
average unemployment rate of 9.3%.

The City had a population of 16,901, according to the 2000 census, an increase of 895 since the
1990 census. Current estimation of the City's population by the Virginia Employment
Commission is 17,693.

Primary revenue sources for the City's General Fund are property taxes, sales taxes, business
and occupational licenses, meal taxes, and state revenues. In establishing the budget,
historical and trend data are analyzed. In addition economic indicators and the impact the
economy will have on the historical data is taken into consideration. Throughout the year,
management monitors revenues and economic indicators to determine if they are on target with
the analysis used to develop the budget. A monthly analysis is prepared for City Council that
presents current financial position and a year to date comparison to the prior year's position.

The adopted fiscal 2010 General Fund budget increased $203,802 over 2009 amounts to
maintain current service in the community. The use of 1% on undesignated cash reserves and
the accrual of a 27" payroll paid out reserves is the reason of a slight budgetary increase. The
projected revenues for fiscal 2010 is actually $47,485,026 or 1.6% less that fiscal 2009. The
projected reduction in the major six revenues at budget creation was less than 1% for fiscal
2010. Since this passage, the Commonwealth of Virginia has reduced funding two additional
times. These have been minor at this point and incorporated without additional departmental
budgetary reductions.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s
accountability for the resources it receives and their uses. Questions concerning this report or
requests for additional information should be directed to the Director of Finance, P.O. Box 3401,
Colonial Heights, Virginia 23834, telephone (804) 520-9332. The City's website address is
www.colonial-heights.com.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009

Primary Government

Exhibit A

Governmental Business-type Component Unit
Activities Activities Totals School Board
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6,793,865 § 383247 $ 777,412 § 5,114,101
Receivables, net
Taxes 11,562,453 - 11,562,453 -
Accounts 257,767 861,586 1,119,353 -
Other 13,519 - 13,519 54,322
Due from other governments 2,340,356 47,790 2,388,146 1,446,656
Due from primary government - - - 172,964
Due from component unit 221,554 - 221,554 -
Internal balances 173,907 (173,907) - -
Inventories 45,085 - 45,085 37,346
Other 9,494 - 9,494 1,628
Restricted cash 4,218,826 - 4,218,826 890,340
Financing costs, net of accumulated amortization 232,255 - 232,255 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Land 4,700,401 136,300 4,836,701 1,090,102
Construction in progress 1,329,214 - 1,329,214 7,092,481
Land improvements - 48,927 48,927 -
Building and structures 19,311,822 3,762,630 23,074,452 19,440,737
Infrastructure 54,385,201 14,248,112 68,633,313 -
Equipment 11,807,365 2,889,108 14,696,473 3,610,883
Less: accumulated depreciation (48,727,169) (9,490,871) (58,218,040)  (13,611,338)
Total assets 68,675,915 12,712,922 81,388,837 25,340,222
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,011,084 215,679 1,226,763 457,925
Accrued interest 145,333 6,678 152,011 -
Accrued liabilities 471,619 49,226 520,845 3,006,208
Unearned revenue 10,268,984 - 10,268,984 20,581
Deposits payable 252,817 95,816 348,633 -
Due to other governments 37,739 - 37,739 394,518
Other postemployement benefits 186,488 17,402 203,890 366,968
Landfill obligation 356,000 - 356,000 -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 2,946,686 402,899 3,349,585 524,626
Due in more than one year 25,326,255 1,901,653 27,227,908 178,981
Total liabilities 41,003,005 2,689,353 43,692,358 4,949,807
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 29,035,677 9,348,617 38,384,294 18,513,205
Unrestricted (1,362,767) 674,952 (687,815) 1,877,210

Total net assets

See Notes to Financial Statements.

$ 27,672,910 $ 10,023,569 §$ 37,696479 § 20,390,415
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA Exhibit C
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2009
Total
Governmental
General Capital Projects Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6,639,127 $ 154,738 $ 6,793,865
Receivables, net
Taxes 11,562,453 - 11,562,453
Accounts 257,767 - 257,767
Other 13,519 - 13,519
Due from other funds 574,954 150,000 724,954
Due from other governments 2,340,356 - 2,340,356
Due from component unit 394,518 - 394,518
Inventories 45,085 - 45,085
Other 9,494 - 9,494
Restricted cash - 4,218,826 4,218,826
Total assets $ 21,837273 $ 4523564 $ 26,360,837
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 684,739 $ 326,345 $ 1,011,084
Due to other funds 150,000 401,047 551,047
Due to other governments 37,739 - 37,739
Due to component unit - 172,964 172,964
Accrued liabilities 471,619 - 471,619
Deposits payable 252,817 - 252,817
Deferred revenue 11,556,009 - 11,656,009
Total liabilities 13,152,923 900,356 14,053,279
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Inventories 45,085 - 45,085
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Encumbrances 305,505 2,864,837 3,170,342
Undesignated:
General fund 8,333,760 - 8,333,760
Capital projects fund - 758,371 758,371
Total fund balances 8,684,350 3,623,208 12,307,558
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 21837273 $ 4523564 $ 26,360,837
See Notes to Financial Statements. 22



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit C
Page 2

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2009

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities

in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not current financial resources and, therefore,
not reported in the governmental funds.

Governmental capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets

Deferred revenue represents amounts that
were not available to fund current expenditures
and, therefore, is not reported as revenue in the
governmental funds.

Long-term debt issuance costs are deferred and
amortized in the Statement of Activities but the
effect of issuance costs are recorded in the
governmental funds in the current period.

Long-term liabilities, including interest payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the
governmental funds.

Bonds payable, including unamortized premiums
Landfill obligation

Compensated absences

Other postemployment benefits

Interest payable

Net assets of governmental activities

See Notes {o Financial Statements.

$

$ 12,307,558

91,534,003
(48,727,169)

42,806,834

1,287,025

232,265

(27,010,820)
(356,000)
(1,262,121)
(186,488)
(145,333)

(28,960,762)

$ 27,672,910
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA Exhibit D
Page 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Total
Governmental
General Capital Projects Funds
Revenues:
General property taxes $ 20897171 $ - 20,897,171
Other local taxes 13,909,768 - 13,909,768
Permits, fees and licenses 3,473,403 - 3,473,403
Fines and forfeitures 731,615 - 731,615
Charges for services 1,283,848 - 1,283,848
Use of money and property 175,942 - 175,942
Miscellaneous 465,376 - 465,376
Reimbursement from component unit 883,248 - 883,248
Intergovernmental 6,475,812 151,333 6,627,145
Total revenues 48,296,183 151,333 48,447,516
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 7,229,137 - 7,229,137
Judicial administration 4,346,342 - 4,346,342
Public safety 7,261,713 - 7,261,713
Public works 3,031,589 - 3,031,589
Heaith and welfare 590,148 - 590,148
Parks, recreation and cultural 2,188,202 - 2,188,202
Community development 553,966 - 553,966
Education 18,767,898 1,434,709 20,202,607
Grants 435,331 - 435,331
Nondepartmental 279,042 - 279,042
Debt service:
Principal 6,082,877 - 6,082,877
Interest and fiscal charges 1,312,510 - 1,312,510
Capital outlays - 1,847,651 1,847,651
Total expenditures 52,078,755 3,282,360 55,361,115
Revenues under expenditures (3,782,572) (3,131,027) (6,913,599)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of debt 3,970,000 - 3,970,000
Transfers in - 933,007 933,007
Transfers out (1,329,615) - (1,329,615)
Other financing sources, net 2,640,385 933,007 3,673,392
Net change in fund balances (1,142,187) (2,198,020) (3,340,207)
Fund balances, beginning 9,826,537 5,821,228 15,647,765
Fund balances, ending $ 8684350 § 3,623,208 $ 12,307,558
24
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit D
Page 2

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Governmental
Funds

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds

Reconciliation of amounts reported for governmental activities
in the Statement of Activities:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current
period.

Expenditures for capital assets

Less depreciation expense

Excess of depreciation over capital outlays

Revenuss in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the governmental funds.

Change in deferred revenue

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases fong-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment
of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in
the Statement of Net Assets.
Debt issued or incurred:
General obligation debt
Landfill obligation
Principal repayments

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences

Change in accrued interest payable

Other postemployment benefits

Capitalized financing costs

Amortization of financing costs and premiums

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.

$ (3,340,207)

$ 3265514
(2,546,112)
719,402
203,934
(3,970,000)
(356,000)
6,082,877
1,756,877
(241,430)
116,168
(186,488)
23,669
(9,112)
(297,193)
$  (957,187)
25



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit E
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2009
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Proprietary
Water Sewer Funds Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 124492 $ 97,996 $ 160,759 $ 383,247
Receivables, net 243,782 419,526 198,278 861,586
Due from other funds 324,359 76,688 - 401,047
Due from other governments - 47,790 - 47,790
Total current assets 692,633 642,000 359,037 1,693,670
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net 4,199,863 7,194,496 199,847 11,594,206
Total assets 4,892,496 7,836,496 558,884 13,287,876
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 143,371 41,339 30,969 215,679
Accrued interest 3,511 3,167 - 6,678
Accrued liabilities 27,958 17,014 4,254 49,226
Due to other funds - 574,954 - 574,954
Deposits payable 95,816 - - 95,816
Compensated absences 17,666 12,805 1,604 32,175
Debt obligations, current 145,513 157,954 67,257 370,724
Total current liabilities 433,835 807,333 104,084 1,345,252
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences 20,562 5,668 558 26,788
Other postemployment benefits 6,105 8,245 3,052 17,402
Debt obligations 873,488 877,865 123,512 1,874,865
Total noncurrent liabilities 900,155 891,778 127,122 1,919,055
Total liabilities 1,333,990 1,699,111 231,206 3,264,307
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,180,862 6,158,677 9,078 9,348,617
Unrestricted 377,644 (21,292) 318,600 674,952
Total net assets $ 3558506 $ 6,137,385 $ 327678 $ 10,023,569

See Notes to Financial Statements. 26



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit F
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Proprietary
Water Sewer Funds Totals
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 1454632 § 2,657,297 1,054,443 5,166,372
Connection fees 259,240 235,300 - 494,540
Penalties and interest 47,703 - 15,685 63,288
Total operating revenues 1,761,575 2,892,697 4,070,028 5,724,200
Operating Expenses:
Personnel ' 429,072 239,589 110,478 779,139
Fringe benefits 184,398 94,505 6,512 285,415
Heat, light and power 9,953 75,693 - 85,646
Repairs and maintenance 11,176 12,241 38,126 61,543
General materials and supplies 46,024 51,009 3,676 100,709
Contracted collection services - - 1,021,922 1,021,922
Sewage treatment costs - 1,885,354 - 1,885,354
Water purchased for resale 532,417 - - 532,417
Depreciation 128,650 224,030 - 352,680
Other charges 240,326 275,038 205,808 721,172
Total operating expenses 1,582,016 2,857,459 1,386,522 5,825,997
Operating income (loss) 179,559 35,138 (316,494) (101,797)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest income 7,864 - - 7,864
Sale of scrap 8,318 219 - 8,537
Interest expense (43,934) (45,815) (2,158) (91,907)
Total nonoperating expenses, net (27,752) (45,596) (2,158) (75,506)
Income (loss) before transfers 151,807 (10,458) (318,652) (177,303)
Transfers in - - 396,608 396,608
Change in net assets 151,807 (10,458) 77,956 219,305
Net assets, beginning 3,406,699 6,147,843 249,722 9,804,264
Net assets, ending $ 3558506 % 6,137,385 327,678 $ 10,023,569

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit G
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Page 1
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Proprietary
Sewer Funds Totals
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers 1,799,135 § 2,918,809 1,064,830 $ 5,782,783
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (2,327,593) (1,246,807) (4,433,995)
Payments to employees for services (328,140) (115,0186) (1,038,032)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 263,076 (296,784) 310,756
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers in - 396,608 396,608
Net cash provided by noncapital
" financing activities - 396,608 396,608
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (151,398) (199,847) (406,404)
Proceeds from capital lease - 199,847 199,847
Principal paid on bond maturities and capital lease (181,578) (8,078) (332,191)
Interest paid on bond maturities and capital lease (46,233) (2,158) (92,779)
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities (379,209) (11,236) (631,527)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest income - - 7,864
Net cash provided by investing activities - - 7,864
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (116,133) 88,588 83,701
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning 214,129 72,171 299,546
Ending 97,996 160,759 § 383,247

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Exhibit G
Page 2
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Proprietary
Water Sewer Funds Totals

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation
Cash received from sales of scrap
Change in assets and liabilities:

(increase) decrease in accounts receivable

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.

$§ 179559 $ 35138 $ (316494) $ (101,797)

128,650 224,030 - 352,680
8,318 219 - 8,537
27,057 25,993 (5,189) 47,861
(19,899) (30,193) 22,925 (27,167)
20,779 7,889 1,974 30,642

$ 344464 § 263,076 $ (296,784) $ 310,756
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1.  Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia, (City) conform with accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government
units promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant
of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Colonial Heights, Virginia was incorporated in 1948 and its current charter was granted
in 1960. The City is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia operating under a
Council/Manager form of government. City Council consists of a mayor and six council members.
The City is not part of a county and has taxing powers subject to statewide restrictions and tax limits.

The City provides the full range of municipal services including police and fire, sanitation, health and
social services, education, parks and recreation and water, sewer, and trash services. The City
provides education through its school system administered by the Colonial Heights School Board.
The City also owns and operates its water and sewer system, administered by the Colonial Heights
Department of Public Utilities.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - School Board - The City of Colonial Heights public school
system is responsible for elementary and secondary education within the City. The elected five-
member School Board serves staggered four-year terms of office. The School Board functions
independently of the City Council, but is required to prepare and submit an annual budget to the City
Council for approval. The School Board may not levy taxes or incur indebtedness under Virginia law
and, therefore, funds for school operations are provided, in part, by appropriation from the City's
General Fund. Funds for constructing school facilities are provided by City approved and issued
general obligation bonds and appropriations from the City's General Fund. The School Board is
presented as a governmental fund type and consists of one operating fund and one capital projects
fund. Additionally, the School Board reports one agency fund, the School Activity Fund, which is
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of operations.

The APA establishes financial reporting requirements for all localities in the Commonwealth of
Virginia. The APA has determined that all Virginia School Boards shall be reported as discretely
presented component units of the locality. The APA has also specified additional reporting
requirements with respect to School Boards.

The Component Unit's financial reports, herein presented, were prepared by the City's Financial
Administration Office using information provided by the School Board which has been audited by
theirindependent auditors. School Board related capital assets and long-term liabilities are included
under the discrete component unit presentation. Details specific to School Board information
communicated in the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report may be obtained by contacting
the School Board's administrative offices located at:

City of Colonial Heights School Board

512 Boulevard
Colonial Heights, Virginia 23834
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
display information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These
statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of
consolidation. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type
activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from the legally separate component unit for which the
primary government is financially accountable. '

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the
City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the
Statement of Activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
City's funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and proprietary —
are presented.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardiess of when the related
cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives)
value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes,
grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from the property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

31



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the
revenues are collected within 75 days after year-end, except property taxes which are
recognized as revenue if they have been collected within 45 days after year-end. Property
taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general
long-term debt, acquisitions under capital leases and sales of capital assets are reported as
other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses
are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such
programs, and then general revenues to fund the program.

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the City follow
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

Operating expenses include cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on

capital assets. All expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
expenses.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the basic operating fund of the City and all regular activities
not expressly allocable to another fund are accounted for in this fund.

Capital Projects Fund. This is used to account for financial resources, which have
been segregated for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other
than those financed or constructed by the proprietary funds).

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Enterprise Funds. The Water Fund and Sewer Funds are used to account for the
acquisition, operation and maintenance of facilities which are primarily supported by
user charges. The operations of the Water and Sewer Funds are accounted for and
reported as Enterprise Funds. These funds account for services to the general
public which are financed primarily by charges to users of such services.

Budgetary Data

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the Comparative Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and

Actual (Exhibit H):

1.

Proposal — At least 60 days prior to June 30, the City Manager submits to City
Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following
July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them.

2. Projects — The capital projects budget is prepared on a project length basis under
which the total outlay for each project is estimated for the length of the project.

3. Adoption — Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments on the
proposed budget. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally adopted at the departmental
level through passage of an appropriation ordinance by City Council.

4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer amounts within departments, with any

interdepartmental transfers being approved by City Council. During the year,
$1,715,881 in supplemental appropriations were approved by City Council. These
amendments consisted primarily of appropriations of prior year encumbrances, the
appropriation of designated fund balance, and the appropriation of additional
intergovernmental grants received during the year.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D.

Budgetary Data (Continued)

5. Legal Compliance — Actual expenditures and operating transfers out may not legally
exceed budget appropriations for each department. City Council legally adopts an annual
budget for the General Fund. Its budget is adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP
except for the recognition of encumbrances, the classification of certain transfers as
expenditures, and the consideration of beginning fund balance as a budgetary resource.

Assets, Liabilities and Equity

1. Investments

The City considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, certificates of deposit, money
market funds and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool. Cash resources of
the individual funds are combined to form a pool of cash and investments to maximize earnings.
All investment earnings are allocated to the various funds based on equity in the investment pool.

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.
2. Property Taxes

Real Property - The City levies real estate taxes on all real estate within its boundaries except
those specifically exempted by statute. These levies are assessed on a calendar year basis as of
January 1 on the estimated fair market value of property. The City follows the practice of
reassessing real property biennially.

For real estate assessed on January 1, 2008, payment is due in two installments on May 15 and
November 15 and is considered delinquent if not received by the due date. On January 1, real
estate taxes become an enforceable lien on related property. The real estate taxes reported as
current year revenue are the second installment (November 15) of the levy on assessed value at
January 1, 2008 and the first installment (May 15) of the levy at January 1, 2009. The taxrate for
calendar year 2009 was $1.10 per $100 of assessed value.

Personal Property - The City levies personal property taxes on motor vehicles and personal and
business property. These levies are assessed on a calendar year basis as of January 1. Personal
property taxes are payable in two installments, which are due on June 5 and December 5. Taxes
become delinquent if not received by the due date. On January 1, personal property taxes
become an enforceable lien on related property. The personal property taxes reported as revenue
are the second installment (December 5) of the levy on assessed value at January 1, 2008, and
the first installment (June 5) of the levy at January 1, 2009. The tax rate for calendar year 2009
was $3.50 per $100 of assessed value. Under the provisions of the Personal Property Tax Relief
Act of 1998 (PPTRA), the City received $1,753,369 the State’s share of the local personal property
tax payment with the remainder collected by the City.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E.

Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

3. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost and are determined by using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventories are accounted for under the consumption method, where inventories are
recorded as expenditures when consumed, rather than when purchased.

4, Restricted Cash

The General Capital Projects and School Board Capital Projects funds have restricted their
cash balances in accordance with a debt agreement.

5.  Capital Assets

Capital assets with a value of $5,000 or greater are recorded in the applicable government
or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets belonging to proprietary funds are also reported in the applicable fund financial
statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at historical or estimated historical cost
if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated
fair market value on the date donated. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method. No depreciation expense is recorded forland, or
construction-in-progress. The estimated useful lives are:

Land improvements 5 - 20 years
Buildings and structures 20 — 50 years
Equipment 4 — 20 years
Infrastructure 30 — 50 years

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City’s infrastructure has been capitalized,
including infrastructure acquired prior to 1980.

6. Compensated Absences Payable

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate eamed but unused compensated
absences. For government-wide reporting, a liability is recorded for compensated absences
when services are rendered and employees have earned the right to received compensation
for such services.

Liabilities for compensated absences are not liquidated until leave is actually taken by
employees or leave balances are paid upon termination. Accordingly, in the fund financial
statements for governmental funds, no expenditure is reported for compensated absences
until they are paid. Current and non-current portions of compensated absences totaling
$1,262,121 are recorded for governmental activities in the government-wide statements and
represent a reconciling item between the government-wide and fund presentations.

Compensated absences earned by employees and charged to proprietary funds are
expensed and accrued as a liability of the appropriate fund when incurred. At June 30, 2009,
the liability for compensated absences was $58,963.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E.

Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

7. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activity or proprietary fund type statement
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

8. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for
use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management
plans that are subject to change.

9. Net Assetls

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt excludes unspent debt proceeds. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

By law, the School Board does not have taxing authority and, therefore, it cannot incur debt
through general obligation bonds to fund the acquisition, construction or improvement to its
capital assets. That responsibility lies with the local governing body who issues the debt on
behalf of the School Board. However, the Code of Virginia requires the School Board to
hold title to the capital assets (buildings and equipment) due to their responsibility for
maintaining the asset.

In the Statement of Net Assets, this scenario presents a dilemma for the primary
government. Debt issued on behalf of the School Board is reported as a liability of the
primary government, thereby reducing the net assets of the primary government. The
corresponding capital assets are reported as assets of the Component Unit - School Board
(title holder), thereby increasing their net assets.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E.

Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)
9. Net Assets (Continued)

The Virginia General Assembly legislature amended the Code of Virginia to allow a tenancy
in common with the School Board whenever the locality incurs a financial obligation which is
payable over more than one fiscal year for any school property. The tenancy in common
terminates when the associated debt has been paid in full. For financial reporting purposes,
the legislation permits the locality to report the portion of the school property related to any
outstanding financial obligation, thus eliminating a potential deficit from financing capital
assets with debt. The legislation also allows local governments to elect not to acquire a
tenancy in common by adopting a resolution to that effect.

The City concluded that, while joint tenancy would resolve a deficit in the primary
government's net assets, the continual computation process that would be required to
allocate principal, interest, asset amount, and depreciation between the City and the School
Board would be cumbersome and not provide any added benefit to the financial statements.
Therefore, the City Council adopted a resolution declining tenancy in common for current
and future obligations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. Deposits and Investments

Deposits: All cash of the City is maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the
Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered
by federal depository insurance.

investments: Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations
of the United States or its agencies thereof, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political
subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development
(World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, "prime quality”
commercial paper and certain corporate notes, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements and
the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

The City has investments in the LGIP. The LGIPis a professionally managed money market fund
which invests in qualifying obligations and securities as permitted by Virginia statutes. Pursuant to
Section 2.2-4605 Code of Virginia, the Treasury Board of the Commonwealth sponsors the LGIP
and has delegated certain functions to the State Treasurer. The LGIP reports to the Treasury Board
at their regularly scheduled monthly meetings. The fair value of the LGIP is the same as the value
of the pool shares, i.e., the LGIP maintains a stable net asset value of $1 per share. The LGIP has
been assigned an “AAAm” rating by Standard & Poor’s. All of the investments made by the City are
in LGIP. The maturity of the LGIP is less than one year.

The City's investment policy only allows investments in types approved by state statutes. The City
will not invest in any derivatives or securities with maturities over one year.

At June 30, 2009, the City's deposit and investment balances were as follows:

Fair
Value
Deposits:
Demand $ 2,573,100
Cash on hand 13,750
2,586,850
Investments:
Money market funds 1,024,815
Treasurer’s local government investment pool 7,784,273
Total deposits and investments $ 11,395,938

At June 30, 2009, the School Board's deposit and investment balances were as follows:

Deposits:
Demand $ 6,004,441
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2009, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as
follows: '

Solid
General Water Sewer Waste
Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Taxes $ 11,860,313 §$ - 5 - 8 - $ 11,860,313
Accounts 257,767 270,782 467,526 198,278 1,194,353
Other 13,519 - - - 13,519
Gross receivables 12,131,599 270,782 467,526 108,278 13,068,185
Less allowance for uncollectible

accounts (297,860) (27,000) (48,000) - (372,860)
Net receivables $ 11,833,739 $ 243,782 $ 419,526 $ 198,278 $ 12,695,325

The allowance for uncollectibles in the General and Enterprise Funds is based on prior experience
with respect to collections. In accordance with policy, no allowance is recorded for delinquent real
estate taxes.

Note 4. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for
which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, such amounts are measurable, but not available. Deferred revenue totaling
$11,556,009 comprised of the following:

Deferred Property Tax Revenue - Deferred revenue, representing uncollected tax billings
not available for funding of current expenditures, totaled $10,978,314 at June 30, 2009.
Unearned advance 2009 tax billing represent $10,268,984 with $709,330 being other
unavailable receivables.

Prepaid Property Taxes - Property taxes due subsequent to June 30, 2009 but paid in
advance by the taxpayers totaled $577,695 at June 30, 2009.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. Due From Other Governments

Due from other governments consists of the following:

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Unit
Federal government $ 28,711 § - $ 086,862
Commonwealth of Virginia:
Other aid, grants and reimbursements 239,392 - -
Sales tax 1,111,988 - 402,831
PPTRA 960,265 - -
Chesterfield County service charges - 35,253 -
Virginia State University service charges - 12,5637 -
Other governments - - 56,963
$ 2,340,356 § 47,790 § 1,446,656
Note 6. Interfund Obligations
Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2009 are:
Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 574,954 $ 150,000
Capital Projects Fund 150,000 401,047
Water Fund 324,359 -
Sewer Fund 76,688 574,954
$ 1,126,001 $ 1,126,001

Bond financed Water Fund and Sewer Fund projects are transferred to the Capital Projects Fund
which accounts for payables between the funds. The Sewer Fund interfund payable represents past
operational subsidies received from General Fund. The General Fund interfund payable represents
the liability to the Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of fire safety apparatus.
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Note 7. Interfund Transfers

Transfer To Fund:
Capital Projects
Solid Waste
Storm Water Management

Total Transferred Out

Transfer
From
General
Fund

933,007
83,900
312,708

$

1,329,615

The transfer from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund was to transfer bond proceeds for

capital project expenditures.

The transfers from the General Fund to the Solid Waste Fund and Storm Water Management Fund

were to subsidize operations.
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Note 8. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Primary Government:
Beginning (Deletions)/ Ending
Balance Increases _ Reclassifications Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 4644581 $ 55,820 $ - § 4,700,401
Construction in progress 644,307 1,738,504 (1,053,597) 1,329,214
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 5,288,888 1,794,324 (1,053,597) 6,029,615
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures 19,269,267 42,555 - 19,311,822
Infrastructure 52,507,266 1,030,264 847,671 54,385,201
Equipment 11,558,591 398,371 (149,597) 11,807,365
Total capital assets being
depreciated 83,335,124 1,471,190 698,074 85,504,388
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures (5,156,348) (605,293) - (5,761,641)
Infrastructure (34,404,754) (1,048,910) - (35,453,664)
Equipment (6,975,478) (891,909) 355,523 (7,511,864)
Total accumulated depreciation (46,536,580) (2,546,112) 355,523 (48,727,169)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 36,798,544 (1,074,922) 1,053,597 36,777,219
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 42,087,432 § 719,402 $ - $ 42,806,834

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government

Judicial administration

Public safety

Public works

Health and welfare

Parks, recreation and cultural

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

$

28,134
4,867
680,137
1,452,747
3,798
376,429

$ 2,546,112
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Note 8. Capital Assets (Continued)

Equipment and other capital assets include capitalized leases of $1,382,289 with a net book value
$367,041.

Management has determined that capitalization of interest costs in the proprietary fund types is
immaterial in relation to total expenses and total proprietary fund capital assets. Accordingly, the
City does not cumrently capitalize interest costs.

Beginning (Deletions)/ Ending
Balance Increases Reclassifications Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 136,300 $ - 5 - 9 136,300
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 136,300 - - . 136,300
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 48,927 - - 48,927
Buildings and structures 3,762,630 - - 3,762,630
Infrastructure 14,168,489 79,623 - 14,248,112
Equipment 2,572,208 326,781 (9,881) 2,889,108
Total capital assets being
depreciated 20,552,254 406,404 (9,881) 20,948,777
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements (38,221) (249) - (38,470)
Buildings and structures (1,755,079) (79,874) - (1,834,953)
Infrastructure (5,525,872) (215,792) - (5,741,664)
Equipment {1,828,900) (56,765) 9,881 (1,875,784)
Total accumulated depreciation (9,148,072) (352,680) 9,881 (9,490,871)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 11,404,182 53,724 - 11,457,906
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 11,540,482 § 53,724 § - § 11,594,206

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Business-type activities:

Water $ 128,650
Sewer 224,030
$ 352,680
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Note 8. Capital Assets (Continued)

Component Unit: School Board

Beginning (Deletions)/ Ending
Balance Additions Reclassifications Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: ‘
Land $ 1,090,102 § - § - $ 1,090,102
Construction in progress 4,031,302 3,061,179 - 7,092,481
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 5,121,404 3,061,179 - 8,182,583
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures 19,159,021 281,716 - 19,440,737
Equipment 3,414,086 196,797 .- 3,610,883
Total capital assets being
depreciated 22,573,107 478,513 - 23,051,620
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures (10,505,504) (430,072) - (10,935,576)
Equipment (2,454,563) (221,199) - (2,675,762)
Total accumulated
depreciation (12,960,067) (651,271) - (13,611,338)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 9,613,040 (172,758) - 9,440,282
Schoo! Board capital assets, net $ 14,734,444 $ 2,888,421 § - $ 17,622,865
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Note 9. Long-Term Obligations

The following schedule reflects changes in long-term liabilities, by area of responsibility, for the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2009:

Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds
Notes payable
Unamortized premium

Compensated absences

Business-type activities:
General obligation bonds
Capital lease

Compensated absences

Total Primary government
long-term liabilities

Component unit — School Board:
Compensated absences
Retirement incentive program

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
$ 24,997,685 $ 3,970,000 $ (2,112,577) $ 26,855,108 § 2,181,533
3,970,300 - (3,970,300) - -
170,672 - (14,960) 165,712 -
29,138,657 3,970,000 (6,097,837) 27,010,820 2,181,533
1,020,691 758,094 (516,664) 1,262,121 765,153
30,159,348 4,728,094 (6,614,501) 28,272,941 2,946,686
2,297,315 - (297,423) 1,999,892 303,467
80,618 199,847 (34,768) 245,697 67,257
2,377,933 199,847 (332,191) 2,245,589 370,724
55,641 35,416 (32,094) 58,963 32,175
2,433,574 235,263 (364,285) 2,304,552 402,899
$ 32,592,922 $ 4,963,357 $ (6,978,786) $ 30,677,493 § 3,349,585

$ 824,254 $ 344,267 $ (595,365) $ 573,156 $ 394,175
524,227 - (393,776) 130,451 130,451
$ 1,348481 344,267 $ (989,141) $ 703,607 $ 524,626

Enterprise Fund revenue sources are used to repay its debt, with all other debt, except School
Board accrued leave and retirement incentive, being paid out of General Fund sources.

Outstanding long-term liabilities at June 30, 2009 are comprised of the following:

Date Interest Amount
Description Issued Rate Outstanding
General obligation serial bonds:
General improvement:

Series 1996 1996 5.100-5.250% $ 585,000
Series 1998 1998 3.850-4.100% 1,675,000
Series 2000 2000 5.125-5.400% 3,275,000
Series 2002 2002 4.000-4.300% 4,280,000
Series 2003 2003 2.470% 440,000
Series 2004 2004 3.000-3.750% 5,055,000
Series 2007 2007 4.000% 9,575,000
Series 2008 2008 3.250% 3,970,000

Total bonds $ 28,855,000
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Note 9. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Date interest Amount
Description Issued Rate Outstanding
Capital Leases Payable:
Camera truck 2006 4.56% $ 54,928
Storm water truck 2009 3.98% 190,769
$ 245,697
Retirement incentive program 1995 8.00% $ 130,451

All general obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the City. All financial bond
requirements have been met by the City.

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term liabilities outstanding, excluding accrued annual
leave, retirement incentive program and environmental liabilities are as follows:

General Obligation Bonds

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010 $ 2,181,533 $ 1,028,806 $ 303,467 $ 72,526
2011 1,899,027 945,896 240,973 61,964
2012 1,978,707 865,228 251,293 52,060
2013 1,897,165 785,065 217,835 42,790
2014 5,942,729 640,044 227,271 34,141
2015-2019 7,381,749 1,819,141 688,251 74,536
2020-2024 3,474,150 798,890 70,802 1,328
2025-2027 2,100,048 170,000 - -
Total $ 26,855,108 $ 7,053,070 $ 1,999,892 § 339,345
Capital Lease Payable
Year Ending Business-type Activities
June 30, Principal Interest

2010 $ 67,257 $ 9,479

2011 66,958 6,100

2012 40,438 3,706

2013 42,078 2,067

2014 28,966 434

$ 245,697 § 21,786
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Note 10. Environmental Liabilities

State and Federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on each phase of its
landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for a certain number of years after closure. For purposes of determining the
required years for postclosure testing, the former landfill is treated as a solid waste landfill that
stopped receiving waste prior to the passing of Subtitle D of the Environmental Protection Act
Regulations. The required number of years of testing is thus ten years.

The City has recently completed the process of closing the former City landfill. The North End has
been previously closed and the South End was approved by the Virginia Division of Waste
Management during the year ended June 30, 2003. The postclosure costs for the South End of the
former City landfill are currently projected to be approximately $356,000 based on a minimum ten
years of testing. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in
regulations.

The City plans to meet all federal laws, regulations and tests of financial assurance related to the
financing of closure and postclosure care when they become effective.
Note 11. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities: Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of
the City management, resolution of these cases would not involve a substantial liability for the City.

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. Although the City has been
audited in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, these programs are still subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could lead to
requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of grants.
Based on prior experience, City management believes such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

Utility Commitments: The utility department has entered into various contracts for the purchase of
water and the treatment of sewage. These commitments are considered by the water and sewer
department in establishing water and sewer rates.

Construction Commitments: The City has entered into various construction contracts with
approximately $2.48 million still outstanding to be completed at year-end.
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Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

A.

Plan Description

Name of Plan: Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
Identification of Plan: Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Administering Entity: Virginia Retirement System (System)

The City of Colonial Heights (City), and its component unit, the Colonial Heights School Board
(School Board), contribute to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), an agent and cost sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the VRS.

Al full-time, salaried permanent employees of participating employers must participate in the
VRS. Benefits vest after five years of service. Employees are eligible for an unreduced
retirement benefit at age 65 with 5 years of service (age 60 for participating local law enforcement
officers, firefighters and sheriffs) or at age 50 with at least 30 years of service if elected by the
employer (age 50 with at least 25 years of service for participating local law enforcement officers,
firefighters and sheriffs) payable monthly for life in an amount equal to 1.7 percent of their
average final compensation (AFC) for each year of credited service (1.85% for sheriff's and if the
employer elects, for other employees in hazardous duty positions receiving enhanced benefits).
Benefits are actuarially reduced for retirees who retire prior to becoming eligible for full retirement
benefits. In addition, retirees qualify for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) beginning in
their second year of retirement. The COLA is limited to 5% per year. AFC is defined as the

—highest consecutive 36 months of reported compensation. Participating local law enforcement

officers, firefighters and sheriffs may receive a monthly benefit supplement if they retire prior to
age 65. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia
(1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
General Assembly of Virginia.

The system issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of that report may
be downloaded from their website at http://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2008annurept.pdf or
obtained by writing to the system’s Chief Financial Officer at P. 0. Box 2500, Richmond, Virginia,
23218-2500.

48



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

B.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to
contribute 5% of their annual reported salary to the VRS. This 5% member contribution has
been assumed by the City and the School Board. In addition, the City and the School Board
are required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund their participation in the
VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS
Board of Trustees. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the contribution rate for the City
was 15.63%, for the School Board's professional employees, 13.81%, and for the School
Board’s non-professional employees, 12.62% of annual covered payroll.

For the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, total employer and employee
contributions made to the VRS statewide teacher cost-sharing pool for professional
employees by the School Board were $2,480,342, $2,238,955, and $2,582,690, respectively,
and were equal to 100% of the required contribution for professional employees for each
year.

Annual Pension Cost (APC)

For fiscal year 2009, the City and the School Board's non-professional employees’ annual
pension costs of $1,990,271 were equal to the required and actual contributions.

Three-year trend information for the City is as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension of APC Pension

Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2009 $ 1,844,637 100% $ -
June 30, 2008 1,664,177 100% -
June 30, 2007 1,468,499 100% -

Three-year trend information for the Component Unit - School Board non-professional
employees, is as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension of APC Pension

Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2009 $ 145,634 100% $ -
June 30, 2008 123,520 100% -
June 30, 2007 125,556 100% -
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Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

C.

Annual Pension Cost (APC) (Continued)

The required contributions were determined as part of the June 30, 2007 actuarial valuation
using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2007
included (a) an investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) of 7.50%, (b)
projected salary increases ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year for general government
employees and 3.50% to 4.75% for employees eligible for enhanced benefits available to
law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs, and (c) a cost-of-living adjustment of
2.50% per year. Both the investment rate of return and the projected salary increases
include an inflation component of 2.50%. The actuarial value of the assets is equal to the
modified market value of assets. This method uses techniques that smooththe effects of
short-term volatility in the market value of assets over a five-year period. The City and the
School Board's non-professional employees unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining
amortization period at June 30, 2007 was 20 years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City’s Plan was 84.59%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $46,684,326 and the actuarial value
of assets was $39,488,009, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$7,196,317. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan)
was $11,145,672, and ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 64.57%.

At June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan for the School Board's
non-professional employees was 97.59% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits
was $3,893,330, and the actuarial value of assets was $3,799,645, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $93,685. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the Plan) was $1,087,263, and ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 8.62%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits.
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Note 13. Other Postemployment Benefits

A

Plan Description

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) provided by the City and the Colonial Heights
School Board (School Board) include single-employer defined benefit retiree health
insurance premium plans.

A City retiree, eligible for the plan, is defined as a full-time employee who retires directly from
the City and is eligible to receive an early or regular retirement benefit from the VRS. For
pre-Medicare coverage, the City will provide a premium credit toward a retiree’s health
insurance premium at a rate of $50.00 per month plus $5.00 per year of service per month
not to exceed $100 per month based on twenty years of service in the VRS. For post-
Medicare coverage, retirees may participate in an Anthem Advantage plan at full cost.
Those with at least fifteen years of service in the VRS receive a credit of $1.50 per month of
VRS service, to a maximum of $45 per month. The plan was established by City Council and
any amendments to the plan must be appoved by the Council.

A School Board retiree, eligible for the School Board's postretirement medical coverage, is
defined as a full-time employee who retires directly from the Schools, and is eligible to
receive an early or regular retirement benefit from the VRS. To be eligible for School
Credits, the employee must also have participated in the Schools’ health insurance plan for
a minimum of five years immediately preceding retirement, and have at least 15 years of
VRS Service. For pre-Medicare coverage, retirees may elect to remain on the Schools’
policy and pay the same premium as participants. Retirees with at least fifteen years of
service receive a School credit of $4.50 per month per year of service to a maximum of $135
for their lifetime. This School service credit will supplement any State Health Care Credits
that the retiree may be eligible for from the State. Post-Medicare retirees may participate in
a Medicare supplemental plan at full cost (less any School service credits). The plan was
established by the School Board and any amendments to the plan must be approved by the
School Board.

The plans do not issue stand-alone financial reports.

Funding Policy

The City’s Council and the School Board establish employer contribution rates for their
respective plan participants. The Council and the Board have chosen to fund the healthcare
benefits on a pay as you go basis.
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Note 13. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

C.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

In July 2009, the City and School Board had an actuarial valuation of postemployment benefits
performed. The annual cost of OPEB under GASB Statement No. 45 is called the annual
required contribution or ARC. The pay as you go cost for OPEB benefits for the City's plan is
$51,420 and the annual benefit cost is $255,310. The percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed is 20.14%. The pay as you go cost for OPEB benefits for the School Board's plan
is $348,568 and the annual benefit cost is $715,636. The percentage of OPEB cost
contributed is 48.71%.

GASB Statement No. 45 does not require prefunding of OPEB liabilities and the City and
School Board have elected not to prefund OPEB liabilities at this time. The difference between
the OPEB annual expense and cash payments for OPEB benefits is treated as a liability in the
financial statements when the liability is not prefunded. At June 30, 2009, the City has
recorded a liability of $203,890 and the School Board has recorded a liability of $366,968 on
the Statement of Net Assets.

The City and School Board are required to contribute the ARC of the employer an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB No. 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The following table shows the calculation of the net OPEB obligations at June 30, 2009.

School

City Board
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 255,310 $ 715,536
Less: cash payments 51,420 348,568
Net OPEB obligation at year-end $ 203,890 $ 366,968

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plans were not funded. The
actuarial value of assets was $0 resulting in an unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) of
$2,765,044 for the City's plan and a UAAL of $8,699,403 for the School Board’s plan.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made for the future. The schedules of funding progress,
presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets
is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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Note 13. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

E. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2009 actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method was
used. The actuarial assumptions include a four percent rate of return and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of ten percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of
five percent after eight years. The unfunded liability is amortized over a period of 30 years
based on a level percent of payroll method.

Note 14. Risk Management

The City and its component unit are exposed to various losses related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets: errors and omissions; injuries to employees and others; and natural
disasters. The City is covered by property/casualty insurance policies or participation in public entity
risk pools on real and personal property, workers’ compensation, public entity and officers’ excess
liability, and volunteer liability. There were no material reductions in insurance coverage from
coverage in the prior year nor did settlements exceed coverage for any of the past three fiscal years.

Risk Pools

The City participates in the Commonwealth of Virginia's Law Enforcement Liability Plan, called VA
Risk2, operated by the Division of Risk Management of the Commonwealth's Department of General
Services. It was created in accordance with Sec. 2.1-526.8:1 of the Code of Virginia, which says that
the State shall have the right and duty to defend any suit seeking damages or compensation against
the City's officials and employees on account of wrongful acts even if any of the allegations of the
suits are groundless, false, or fraudulent and may make investigation and settlement of any claims
or suit as deemed expedient. The limits of VA Risk2 coverage are $1,000,000 per claim.

Under the provisions of the Virginia Workers' Compensation Act, the City has secured the payment
of compensation benefits and employers' liability coverage with the Virginia Municipal Group Self
Insurance Association (VMGSIA). VMGSIA is a public entity risk pool providing a comprehensive
workers' compensation insurance program and risk management services with emphasis on loss
control and claims administration.

The City has secured real and personal property coverage and general liability insurance, including
automobiles, with the Virginia Municipal Liability Pool. The pool is a public entity risk pool providing
compensative liability coverage risk management services with emphasis on loss control and claims
administration.
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Note 15. Joint Ventures

Riverside Regional Jail Authority: The Riverside Regional Jail Authority (Jail Authority) was created by
Chapter 726 of the 1990 Acts of the General Assembly and was formed on June 21, 1990. The Jail
Authority is comprised of the Cities of Colonial Heights, Hopewell and Petersburg and the Counties of
Charles City, Chesterfield, Prince George and Surry. The Jail Authority is governed by a seven-member
board comprised of one member from each participating jurisdiction. Each member must reside in and
be appointed by the governing body of his political subdivision.

The general purpose of the Jail Authority is to acquire, construct, equip, maintain and operate a
regional jail facility to meet the needs of the participating jurisdictions for additional jail facilities. The Jail
Authority completed the feasibility study and conceptual design of the jail and proceeded with the
preparation of the Service Agreement. The Service Agreement is a long-term contract regulating usage
of the jail and establishing payment terms applicable to participating jurisdictions. It guarantees that the
facility will be used and provides for the issuance of revenue bonds to fund the final design and
construction of the regional jail facility. During July and August 1992, each participating jurisdiction
approved the Service Agreement at its respective board meeting. The board members of the Jail
Authority signed the Service Agreement on August 27, 1992.

Complete financial statements for the Jail Authority can be obtained from the Jail Authority at 1000
River Road, P.O. Box 1041, Hopewell, VA 23860.

Appomattox River Water Authority: The City, in conjunction with the Counties of Chesterfield, Dinwiddie
and Prince George and the City of Petersburg, participated in the creation of the Appomattox River
Water Authority (Water Authority). The Water Authority was established under the provisions of the
Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act. The Water Authority, whose five-member board is comprised
of one representative from each participating entity, is responsible for providing a supply of filtered
water to be purchased by the members of the Water Authority. In accordance with the joint venture
agreement, each participating entity is required to purchase water from the Water Authority. The City
retains an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture due to this requirement of the agreement.
The City's purchase of water for the year ended June 30, 2009 was $532,417. Complete financial
statements for the Water Authority can be obtained from the Water Authority's office at 21 300 Chesdin
Road, Petersburg, VA 23803.

South Central Wastewater Authority (SCWWA): The authority was created on July 2, 1996, and
currently provides wastewater treatment to the Cities of Colonial Heights and Petersburg, the Counties
of Chesterfield and Prince George and the Dinwiddie County Water Authority. The City has 4.0 million
gallons per day of wastewater treatment capacity reserved at SCWWA's plant pursuant to a long-term
service contract. The City's cost of wastewater treatment for the year ended June 30, 2009 was
$1,885,354. Complete financial statements for the Wastewater Authority can be obtained from the
Wastewater Authority's office at 900 Magazine Road, Petersburg, VA 23803.
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Note 16. Jointly Governed Organizations

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority: The Central Virginia Waste Management Authority
(Waste Authority) was established under the provision of the Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act.
The Waste Authority's board is comprised of representatives from the Cities of Colonial Heights,
Petersburg and Richmond, as well as the Counties of Charles City, Chesterfield, Goochland, Hanover,
Henrico, New Kent, Powhatan, Prince George, and the Town of Ashland. The Waste Authority is
comprised of a 20-member board with member jurisdictions making at least one but no more than three
appointments. The City appoints one board member. The Waste Authority is responsible for creating
and implementing recycling and solid waste management programs for member jurisdictions in order to
meet waste reduction mandates set by the Virginia General Assembly. Except for contribution
requirements and direct payments for special projects, no participant has an ongoing financial interest
or responsibility in the Waste Authority. The City's fiscal year 2009 contribution requirement and direct
payments for special projects totaled $1,012,078.

Virginia Gateway Region Board: The Virginia Gateway Region Board (VGRB) serves the Cities of
Colonial Heights, Hopewell and Petersburg, as well as the Counties of Chesterfield, Dinwiddie and
Prince George in their efforts to provide balanced industrialization to corporation members. The City
appoints two members of the Appomattox Basin Industrial Development Corporation (ABIDCO) board
and contributed $32,713 to ABIDCO for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

Note 17. Related Organization

The City Council is responsible for appointing the members of the Colonial Heights Industrial
Development Authority (Development Authority), but the City Council's accountability for this
organization does not extend beyond making the appointments. The Development Authority was
established under the Industrial Development and Revenue Act, Code of the Commonwealth of
Virginia. The Development Authority has the responsibility to promote industry and development of
trade by inducing manufacturing, industrial and commercial enterprise to locate or to remain in the City.

Note 18. Subsequent Event
On November 18, 2009, the City Council authorized the refunding of the Series 1996, Series 1998, and
Series 2000 General Obligation Serial Bonds. This refunding is anticipated to occur during the early

part of calendar year 2010. The amount of the refunding and other terms of the issuance have not
been determined as of the date of this report.

55



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 19. Pending GASB Statements

At June 30, 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) had issued statements not
yet implemented by the City. The statements which might impact the City are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, establishes
accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets, particularly in the areas of
recognition, initial measurement, and amortization to reduce inconsistencies of reporting among state
and local governments. Statement No. 51 will be effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.

GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, addresses the
recognition, measure, and disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by
state and local governments. Statement No. 53 will be effective for periods beginning after June 15,
2009.

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Govermmental Fund Type Definitions,
establishes standards to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund
balance classifications that comprise hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a governmentis
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.
Statement No. 54 will be effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA AND COMPONENT UNIT

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - VIRGINIA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Unfunded
Actuarial
Unfunded Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Liability as a
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

A. Primary Government employees:

June 30,2008 $ 31,475,180 $34,821,242 § 3,346,062 90.39% $ 9,432,548 35.47%
June 30, 2007 35,809,408 40,669,059 4,859,651 88.05% 9,985,727 48.81%
June 30, 2008 39,488,009 46,684,326 7,196,317 84.59% 11,145,672 64.57%
B. Component Unit - School Board non-professional employees:
June 30,2006 $ 3,167,031 $ 3473258 § 306,227 91.18% $ 912,761 33.55%
June 30, 2007 3,610,664 3,760,191 249,527 93.36% 1,016,232 24.55%
June 30, 2008 3,799,645 3,893,330 93,685 97.59% 1,087,263 8.62%
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Unfunded
Actuarial
Unfunded Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Liability as a
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
A. Primary Government employees:
July 1,2009 § - $ 2,765,044 § 2,765,044 0.00% $11,145,672 24.81%
B. Component Unit - School Board employees:
July 1,2009 § - $ 8,689,403 § 8,699,403 0.00% $21,181,247 41.07%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Fiscal Year Annual
Ended Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed

A. Primary Government employees:
2009 $ 255,310 20.14%
B. Component Unit - School Board employees:

2009 $ 715,536 48.71%
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Exhibit H
GENERAL FUND Page 1
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
QOriginal Final Actual Over (Under)
Revenues:
Revenue from local sources:
General property taxes:
Real property $ 17,407,368 $ 17,407,368 § 17,729,485 $ 322,117
Real and personal public service corporation
property 302,636 302,636 326,700 24,064
Personal property 2,116,061 2,116,061 2,362,668 246,607
Delinguent 828,703 828,703 300,499 (528,204)
Penalties and interest 225,000 225,000 177,819 (47,181)
Total general property faxes 20,879,768 20,879,768 20,897,171 17,403
Other local taxes:
Communication sales and use 790,000 790,000 748,546 (41,454)
Food and lodging 4,772,500 4,772,500 4,813,420 40,920
Consumer utility 990,000 990,000 961,360 (28,640)
Bank stock 165,000 165,000 175,242 10,242
Local option sales and use 7,754,100 7,754,100 6,998,818 (755,282)
Recordation 300,000 300,000 212,382 (87,618)
Franchise utility 105,000 105,000 - (105,000)
Total local taxes 14,876,600 14,876,600 13,909,768 (966,832)
Permits, fees and licenses:
Business and occupational licenses 2,904,233 2,904,233 2,810,223 (94,010)
Motor vehicle licenses 345,000 345,000 360,797 15,797
Zoning and construction permits 194,000 194,000 199,804 5,804
Other fees 43,050 43,050 102,579 59,528
Total permits, fees and licenses 3,486,283 3,486,283 3,473,403 (12,880)
Fines and forfeitures 429,000 429,000 731,615 302,615
Charges for services:
Recreation use charges and fees 241,000 241,000 254,040 13,040
Administrative 1,182,463 1,182,463 1,020,638 (161,825)
Other 19,000 19,000 9,170 (9,830)
Total charges for services 1,442,463 1,442,463 1,283,848 (158,615)
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Year Ended June 30, 2009
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Over (Under)
Revenues:
Revenue from local sources:
Use of money and property:
Interest $ 290,000 $ 290,000 $ 128,837 $ (161,163)
Rental of property 9,000 9,000 36,635 27,635
Sale of commodities and property 3,000 3,000 10,470 7,470
Total use of money and property 302,000 302,000 175,942 (126,058)
Miscellaneous 15,100 149,852 465,376 315,524
Reimbursement from component unit 490,823 788,730 883,248 94,518
Total revenue from local sources 41,922,037 42,354,696 41,820,371 (534,325)
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Non-categorical aid:
Personal property tax relief 1,753,369 1,753,369 1,753,369 -
Rolling stock taxes - 3,126 4,180 1,054
Rental vehicle taxes 110,000 110,000 114,300 4,300
Total non-categorical aid 1,863,369 1,866,495 1,871,849 5,354
Categorical aid:
Commissioner of Revenue 97,588 100,401 100,193 (208)
Treasurer 96,837 101,060 99,106 (1,954)
Circuit court 241,191 246,113 245,280 (833)
Sheriff 307,858 A 315,420 (1,697)
Commonwealth's attorney 471,840 486,418 433,913 (52,505)
Law enforcement 667,000 667,922 642,817 (25,105)
Street construction and maintenance 2,039,000 2,094,236 2,094,236 -
Other 486,595 428,220 445,732 17,512
Total categorical aid 4,407,909 4,441,487 4,376,697 {64,790)
Total revenue from the
Commonwealth 6,271,278 6,307,982 6,248,546 (59,436)
Revenue from the federal government:
Categorical aid 60,074 171,059 227,266 56,207
Total intergovernmental 6,331,352 6,479,041 6,475,812 (3,229)
Total revenues 48,253,389 48,833,737 48,296,183 (537,554)
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Year Ended June 30, 2009
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Over (Under)
Expenditures:
General government:
City council $ 76,400 $ 76,400 $ 69,340 $ (7,060)
Clerk of council 75,660 78,260 74,949 (3,311)
City manager 193,194 193,253 190,186 (3,067)
Human resources 115,529 115,529 100,549 (14,980)
City attorney 195,628 203,428 186,167 (17,261)
Real estate assessor 165,432 165,432 160,547 (4,885)
Commissioner of revenue 196,637 197,050 193,749 (3,301)
Treasurer 244,529 245,579 226,581 (18,998)
Finance 488,315 491,222 484,240 (6,982)
Information technologies 205,281 205,982 193,896 (12,086)
Auditing 138,515 138,515 133,408 (5,107)
Purchasing 146,848 147,420 80,406 (67,014)
Insurance and risk management 579,400 579,400 563,655 (15,745)
Employee benefits 4,362,915 4,364,306 4,448,110 83,804
Board of elections 26,121 26,460 25,919 (541)
Registrar 105,490 105,493 97,435 (8,058)
Total general government 7,315,894 7,333,729 7,229,137 (104,592)
Judicial administration:
Circuit courts 340,698 343,237 332,364 (10,873)
General district court 53,880 54,651 92,413 37,762
Probation 6,900 6,900 5,933 (967)
Commonwealth's attorney 524,400 563,635 507,779 (55,856)
Sheriff 492,480 562,846 550,066 (12,780)
Incarceration 2,171,100 2,175,548 2,710,579 535,031
Community correction services 82,000 82,000 82,000 -
Community diversion services 65,700 65,700 65,208 (492)
Total judicial administration 3,737,158 3,854,517 4,346,342 491,825
Public safety:
Bureau of police 3,391,352 3,433,063 3,356,338 (76,725)
Bureau of fire 2,798,171 2,925,615 2,802,660 (122,955)
Emergency preparedness 3,800 11,000 8,322 (2,678)
Communications 1,114,591 1,131,807 1,094,393 (37,414)
Total public safety 7,307,914 7,501,485 7,261,713 (239,772)
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FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Over (Under)
Expenditures:
Public works:
Administration $ 251,332 § 251,332 % 244226 $ (7,1086)
Horticulture 100,981 101,041 83,005 (18,036)
Engineering division 537,997 571,955 558,118 (13,837)
Street maintenance 1,254,946 1,472,667 1,077,002 (395,665)
Building maintenance 516,664 583,544 578,908 (4,636)
Traffic engineering 220,474 231,801 192,771 (39,030)
Fleet maintenance 273,103 273,795 297,559 23,764
Total public works 3,155,497 3,486,135 3,031,589 (454,546)
Health and welfare:
Health 153,000 153,680 150,364 (3,316)
Welfare 300,000 300,000 323,144 23,144
Comprehensive services 185,729 190,943 116,640 (74,303)
Total health and welfare 638,729 644,623 590,148 (54,475)
Parks, recreation and cultural:
Parks and recreation 562,982 571,331 524,857 (46,474)
Parks and grounds 545,823 573,745 543,534 (30,211)
Agency on aging 236,868 236,926 207,806 (29,120)
Violet Bank Museum 98,748 118,105 93,819 (24,286)
Library 596,118 617,203 586,620 (30,583)
Recreation trips and classes 219,000 219,000 231,566 12,566
Total parks, recreation and cultural 2,259,539 2,336,310 2,188,202 (148,108)
Community development:
Planning 233,673 229,908 219,003 (10,905)
Building inspections 197,227 197,227 193,963 (3,264)
Industrial development 135,000 141,000 141,000 -
Total community development 565,900 568,135 553,966 (14,169)
Education:
Appropriation to component unit 18,741,936 18,767,898 18,767,898 -
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Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Over (Under)
Expenditures:
Grants:
Office of Youth 3 130,730 $ 142,590 $ 139,434 $ (3,156)
Better Beginnings 5,000 4,000 1,826 (2,174)
Juvenile Crime 110,516 110,516 103,654 (6,862)
Victim Witness 63,363 63,836 61,085 (2,751)
CDBG - 142,632 101,221 (41,411)
Kids After School Program 40,000 40,000 24,408 (15,592)
Other - 4,200 3,703 (497)
Total grants 349,609 507,774 435,331 (72,443)
Nondepartmental:
Contributions and subsidies 194,091 194,091 193,597 (494)
Contingencies and miscellaneous 308,700 235,628 85,445 (150,183)
Total nondepartmental 502,791 429,719 279,042 (150,677)
Debt service:
Principal retirement 2,112,578 2,112,578 6,082,877 3,970,299
Interest and fiscal charges 1,207,804 1,311,282 1,312,510 1,228
Total debt service 3,320,382 3,423,860 7,395,387 3,971,527
Total expenditures 47,895,349 48,854,185 52,078,755 3,224,570
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures 358,040 (20,448) (3,782,572) (3,762,124)
Other Financing Source (Uses):
Issuance of debt - - 3,970,000 3,970,000
Transfers out:
Solid Waste (83,900) (83,900) (83,900) -
Storm Water Management (337,000) (337,000) (312,708) 24,292
Capital Projects Fund (150,000) (933,007) (933,007) -
Total other financing sources (uses), net (570,900) (1,353,907) 2,640,385 3,994,202
Net change in fund balance (212,860) (1,374,355) (1,142,187) 232,168
Fund Balance, beginning 212,860 1,374,355 9,826,537 8,452,182
Fund Balance, ending $ - $ - $ 8,684,350 $ 8,684,350
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2009

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the Schedule of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual.

1) Proposal - at least 60 days prior to June 30, the City Manager submits to City Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

2) Adoption - Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments on the proposed budget. Prior to July 1,
the budget is legally adopted at the departmental level through passage of an appropriation ordinance by City
Council.

3) The City Manager is authorized to transfer amounts within departments, with any interdepartmental transfers
being approved by City Council. During the year, $1,715,881 in supplemental appropriations were approved by
City Council. These amendments consisted primarily of appropriations of prior year encumbrances, the
appropriation of designated fund balance, and the appropriation of additional intergovernmental grants received
during the year.

4) Legal Compliance - Actual expenditures and operating transfers out may not legally exceed budget
appropriations for each department. City Council adopts an annual budget for the General Fund. Its budget is
adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
except for the recognition of encumbrances, the classification of certain transfers as expenditures, and the
consideration of beginning fund balance as a budgetary resource.
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Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Solid Waste Fund

The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for revenues collected for solid waste collections and is to
become self-sufficient over a multi-year rate structure increase. This fund accounts for services to the
general public which are financed primarily by charges to users of such services.

Storm Water Management Fund

The Storm Water Management Fund was established to address the design, development,
improvement, operation, inspection, maintenance, and oversight of the City's storm water runoff. The
operations of this fund are currently completely subsidized by the General Fund; however, the City is
currently investigating appropriate mechanisms for charging the residents and businesses of the City to
sustain the activities of this operation.



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit |
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2009
Solid Storm Water
Waste Management Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments 68,233 $ 92526 $ 160,759
Receivables, net 198,278 - 198,278
Total current assets 266,511 92,526 359,037
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net - 199,847 199,847
Total assets 266,511 292,373 558,884
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 6,894 24,075 30,969
Accrued liabilities - 4,254 4,254
Compensated absences - 1,604 1,604
Debt obligations, current - 67,257 67,257
Total current liabilities 6,894 97,190 104,084
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences - 558 558
Other postemployment benefits 1,164 1,888 3,052
Debt obligations - 123,512 123,512
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,164 125,958 127,122
Total liabilities 8,058 223,148 231,206
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - 9,078 9,078
Unrestricted 258,453 60,147 318,600
Total net assets 258,453 $ 69,225 $ 327,678
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Solid Storm Water
Waste Management Totals
Operating Revenues:

Charges for services $ 1,054,443 § - $ 1,054,443

Penalties and interest 15,685 - 15,585
Total operating revenues 1,070,028 - 1,070,028

Operating Expenses:

Personnel 3,374 107,104 110,478

Fringe benefits 1,164 5,348 6,512

Repairs and maintenance 36,088 2,038 38,126

General materials and supplies 478 3,198 3,676

Contracted collection services 1,021,922 - 1,021,922

Other charges 82,171 123,637 205,808
Total operating expenses 1,145,197 241,325 1,386,522
Operating loss (75,169) (241,325) (316,494)

Nonoperating Expense:
Interest expense - (2,158) (2,158)
Total nonoperating expense - (2,158) (2,158)
Loss before transfers (75,169) (243,483) (318,652)
Transfers in 83,900 312,708 396,608

Change in net assets 8,731 69,225 77,956
Net assets, beginning 249,722 - 249,722
Net assets, ending $ 258453 $ 69,225 § 327,678
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Solid Storm Water
Waste Management Totals
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers $ 1,064,839 $ - 1,064,839
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,141,809) (104,798) (1,246,607)
Payments to employees for services (10,868) (104,148) (115,016)
Net cash used in operating activities (87,838) (208,946) (296,784)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers in 83,900 312,708 396,608
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities 83,900 312,708 396,608
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition of capital assets - (199,847) (199,847)
Proceeds from capital lease - 199,847 199,847
Principal paid on bond maturities and capital lease - (9,078) (9,078)
Interest paid on bond maturities and capital lease - (2,158) (2,158)
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities - (11,236) (11,236)
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (3,938) 92,526 88,588
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning 72471 - 72,1471
Ending $ 68,233 92,526 % 160,759
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Operating loss $ (75,169) $ (241,325) (316,494)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash used in operating activities:
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable (5,189) - (5,189)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (1,150) 24,075 22,925
Accrued liabilities (6,330) 8,304 1,974
Net cash used in operating activities $ (87,838) $ (208,946) (296,784)

66



SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES



67

862 v¥8 - 80.L'VEV'L ¥68'022'S 000°005°L - (o00'62Y) - 000°6L9°L sajjijioe ] [euopeonpy 101
96E'7v8 - 80L'VEV'L ¥68°'0¢2's 000'005°L - (000'G21) - 000'6.9'L ejolL
g6E'vie - 80L'vEY'L $68'02Z'S 000°005°.L - (o00's/t) - 000'6.9°L weibold 1D loouos o} Jajsuel]
:syosfoid e)ejdwoouyl o} sjqeooly
ssjjijioe 4 [euoieonpl
ov0'zL 90’y 885°68/ 0£0'L92 voc'eol’t 000'001 {000'509) 100'81E 16e'e6et sepijioed [euoleaiosy jejo]
0v0'2L 20L'Y 885'68. 0£0'192 ¥9E'991°1 000'00L {000'c09) 100'gLE 1GE'eeE’} {ejol
(ev6's) z99'6 180'799 00081 100289 - - 100'28z 000°00% lejusd yjnohjuezyo Joueg
Lev'Gl - JA7AS 000‘9 869'v2 - (o0s'8L¥) - 861°€0G lsjueo Hods [ooyos [RUOHBOOA
1¥9'8 yya'ee 9z8'LLE £85'9e 006°061 000'001 - 000°eE 006'¥S Kemuesib toapy xojewoddy
9v9 - ey 0.6'85 65.°c9 - - - 65L°€9 winasnpy yueg J9|0IA
9£2'/S - 68z'g LIyl 000602 - {oog'get) - 005'Lee ue|d Jsjsew sajljioe
:sjosfoid ssjdoou) o} ajgesoly
sapjijioe] [puoieaIosy
6.G'67} Z86'68¢ 66£°10Z 168'SLY'E 168'961'Y 104°69 - - 051°/80'F JUsWLIBACY [RIBUSD [BJO L
6.G'6Y1 Z86°68E £96'¥9 Ley'ope'e GZ6'056'E 09g's - - G9G'GYB'E ejolL
€E6'vY - L6129 0.8°2s2 000°09¢ - - - 000'09e juswdolaaspal pieasinog
6¢9 - - 990°128°C G69°'128°2 - - - G69°128'e uopeAcual Atelqr]
0£5°85 286'68¢E ovL'Z Zyl'eel 000°065 - - - 000'065 juswssesse spasu Bulp|ing sunoDd
l8¥'sh - - ebL'eel 0e2'6L1 09g's - - 0/8'cll wsunoy@spiuiwcy uojesygnesg
:syosfoud aysjdwioou; o} sjqeoo|ly
- - 961’9l 0.¥'69 926602 LYE'P9 - - 585°L vl ejol
- $ - $ gsv'oel $ 0/¥'69 oze'soz  $ LPE'YS $ - - $ GRSyl $ smeiedde aiif
:syoafoid a)e|dwos o) s|qeoojly
JUSLILLIBACL) [Rlauss)
aouejeq justujwwo) juaung SIBSA uwmn:m amnn4g (Ino)jui juaung SEEIN sulep 108{oid
pajebijgoun JoRHUOYD Joud pasiney pajos|jooun siajsuelj Jold
SjuslL}iLULLION 10BjUCD pUR seinjipuedX3 S80IN0SaY pue sanusAsy
6002 ‘0¢ aunp papug Jeaji
FONVIVE a3LVvOITgONN ANV
SLINIWLININOD LOVHLINOD ‘STUNLIANIJXT ‘STOUNOSTY ‘SIANNIAIY 40 ITNAIHIS
T HqIYXg

VINIDYIA ‘SLHOIZH TVINOT10D 40 ALID



68

Z€9°'1/6'68  1£8'1v98'2S 0oc'zez'sy  yr0'zeEg’0lS 882'601'€2$ 69Z'661'GS 1862 ¢  OyS'p80'l$  20.'/189L% jUsWUIaN0D) [eiaueg) - sjoefold [e1o]
- - - - Giy'8s) - - 000°05} Gly'g pejejey j08foid UON
- - - {ote's10'L) (ote'sio’)) - 196'LY (162°c90°1) sjoafold peeley sjuswenoidii] Aan
2e9'116'S 1€8'v98'C 09£°'282' PeELPE 1L £81'996'€2 Goz'6G1L'G - ovE'vE6 8/6'2.8' L} syoefold jejideD 210t
- - - 0LE'GLO'L 0LE'GLO'} - (186'L¥) - L62°€90°L syuswancidwi) Aynn [elol
- - - £50'22L £60'22. - (1L86°2¥) - YE0'0LL elol
- - - £50'22L £60'22L - (186'L¥) - $¥£0'0LL uope)ijiqeyal sullisie
:spoefoud sje|dwosul 0} 8jqeoojly
- - - 162'€62 16Z°€62 - - - 1GZ'S62 [ejoL
- - - 162'€62 16Z'€62 - - - 162'¢62 Bunse) eulj waisAs AN
:s100foid sje|dwoo o} 8|qeoo|ly
syuswsaoduw AN
GL9'G06'Y syl L' 599'958 622 ¥E6’L 85922101 $95'686'Y 186'128 cee'alg 08.'c69'c sabpug pue sjeals [elol
G19'G06'Y 671 LEY'T 599'068 622 76’1 859'/2Z1°0L $95°686' 186'128 £££'919 08.°S69°E e1ol
90£'296'c 618'9/¢'L c11'e - 868'0/£'G 868'925'Y 000°68E 000'G9Y - uogossIsiul pAig Andng
- - - (AN AR - (gzg'99) - 000'001 Jomes uiiols uoyBuixe
- - - cez'vl gez'vl - {g91's51) - 000°0LL Jomas ULIo}s uiseg JLoeA
$98'862 - ogl'ze - 000°LEE 000°LEE - - - Jayg/ejduia uoljeuipicod [eublg
¥68'6£2 Zyo'LL ¥90'22 - 000'6/2 000'szt - - 000'05} jueiB Buyojew pleasinog
- - - 80.'0¥ 80.'9v - {z62'cs) - 000°00} uoljels Jajsuel) - peol ssaooy
GoL'L - 1¥0'865 1¥8'201 666'L0L 989'9 - eee'lgl 000'085 Bujuspim pleasinog
(cat'e) 1486} y19'9 611281 612281 - - - 612'281 abeurelp aaup woybuo
£69'66¢ L11'6e0'} ol L'vyl 090°6EE’L 985'8/8°2 - 980°0}L - 0058912 afeuelp snusAe song
- - - 88y'0lg 88¥'012 - (zL8'vh) - 000'65Z sjustusoidul ebeuielp J8jeMULIOIS
19521 - - - 19521 - - - 19521 aieys [eooj-uojonysuco AemybiH
1178 $ - ¢ glesk §$ - zez'es $ - $ gzez'es $ - $ - $ josfoid yusuidojeaspay
:sj0efoid sjeiduwiosul o} 8jgeoo|ly
sabpug pue sjeeisg
asoueleg JREN 1T o1} jus.ng [S3=E)N 1ebpng ainjn4g (o)t uaing siesA aule) josloid
vmummznocD jorjuO) 10U vmm_>mm vmﬁm:ou:: w\_wmm:m._._. Jold

SjUSLLIWILIoS JoelUc) pue sainjipuadxgy

S80IN0SaY puUe sanusAsy



000'668'82 000'60.'S 000°095'¥€ 000'095'¥€ 000'G8¥¢ spuog [euag uoiebiiqQ [elausg [BjloL
000°0.6'¢ - 000°0.6'¢ 000'0.6'¢ - #1/0€/90 g0/€Z/0L  L/2LIL/90 0STE 8002 saueg uawaAoidw [elaued
000'6.5'6 000'6se 000'0£6'6 000'0£6'6 000'G.E 12/0€/90 20/02/\ 1 LiZLL90  000'Y . 1002 souag juswaAoidul| [elousD
000'660°S 000'sy¥'L 000°005'9 000'00S'9 000°G8¢€ 61/0€/90 y0/SL/0L  L/2LiL/90  000°E 002 soueg juswaAoidy [BlausD
000'0vY 000'0LG'E 000'056'¢€ 000'056'c 000'0%¥ 01/0€/90 c0/eZiZl  LZLLe0  0L¥C £00¢ s8ieg jusLLBACIdW [B1SUSD
000'69S - 000°69S 000°'G9S - LU/Lo/gh 20/L0/0L  L/2LiL/90  00EY 200¢ salleg JuswaAoidw [eIBUSD
000‘0vS - 000'0¥S 000°0YS - 9L/L0/¢t Z0/L0/0L  L/ZLL/90  002'Y 2c00¢ soueg juswwsAoidu [BISUSD
000°'01LG - 000°0LS 000°0LG - SL/L0/zt ZO/LO/OL  L/ZLiLB0  0SLY 2002 sousg JusiuaAoidw] [E1OUSD
0006992 000°G6¢ 000'090°¢ 000'090°¢ 000°G0Y ¥L/LO/CL 20/10/0}  L/ZLL/90 000V 200¢ sayog juswancidw| [eseusn
000°'0SS - 000055 000°'0SS - G1/10/2L 00/1L0/20 LiZLL80  00¥'S 0002 saleg jJuswaAoldw [eJOUSD
000'02S - 000°'02S 000025 - yLIL0/CL 00/10/20 L/2LL/G0 00V’ 0002 Soleg jusWeAoidil} [eJaUsD
000°06¥ - 000°06¥% 000°06% - el/io/neL 00/10/20 LiCLL/90 0S€°S 0002 ssleg juawaAoidulj [eJousg
000°'G9Y - 000°'GoY 000°G9V - cLonet 00/1L0/20 L/i2LL/90 0ST'S 000c seueg juswaAoidul [elousD
000'0tY - 000'0¥v 000'0v¥ . Li/Lo/eL 00/L0/20 L/2LIL/90 002G 000¢ souag juawiaAoidull [eJeusd
000'GLY - 000°'GLY 000°'GLY - oL/Lo/ch 00/10/20 L/2LL/90 0SL'S 0002 soleg jualaAoidul| [e1BUaD
000'66¢€ - 000°66€ 000'G6¢ 000'G6e 60/10/21 00/L0/20 L/i2LLi90 STL'S 0002 seuag jusweAoidul] [elsuUsD
000'0.¢ - 000°'0.€ 000°0.¢ - eLiLoret g26/L0/0L  L/2LL/80 00L'¥ 8661 seuas juswaAoiduwy [elauan
000'0S¢€ - 000'0S€ 000°‘05¢€ - aLiornei 86/L0/0L L/2LiL/90 080V 8661 ssieg uswaAoidul| [eleusd
000'see - 000'6eE 000°'GeE - Li/Lo/eL g6/L0/0L  L/2LL/A0 000 8661 SOLBG JUBWSAIdUl] [BIBUSD
000°'02¢ - 000°02¢ 000°'02¢ - oL/Lo/gt 86/L0/0L /21190 0S6'C 8661 saueg Juswoeoidw| [BIeUSD
000'00¢€ - 000°00¢ 000°00¢ 000°'00€ 60/L0/CL 86/10/0L  L/2LL/90 006°€ 8661 seuog Juswsaroidw| [eleuaD
000602 - 000602 000602 - LLLo/eL 06/L0/0L  L/2LIL/90 0§29 9661 saleg juswoaAoidw| [BIeUSD
000'661 - 000'G61 000'G61L - oL/Lo/ct 96/1L0/0} L/2LL/%0 0928 9661 seuag juswoAcidw| [e1eusD
ooo'sgt  $ - ¢ 000'¢gl $ 000's8i 000'sgl ¢  60/1L0/Ct 06/L0/0L  L/ZLL/I90 %S2L'S a661 soueg juswaroidu] [eIeUsD
:spuog [eues uonebigo [eeusn
BUIPUBISINO paiijoy panss| paziouiny JUBWIAEH a1ed panssy seieq o, @18y
SeniIger Wis | -buoT JO junoly fediuud funiepy eleqd 1s8I01U} 1591814
01-600¢ jeuid aA0aHS
6002 ‘0 aunp papuzg Jea)
LINN LNINOJINOD ANV ININNYIAOD AUVINRId
| abed SILLITIGVIT WNIL-ONOT ¥IHLO ANV S3SVA ‘SaNOdg 40 F1NA3IHOS
N HqIyx3

VINIOYIA ‘SLHOIZH TVINOTOD 40 ALID

[&)]
o



99¢'GzZLIE § saniiqer] wie ] -buot |gjo]
285'v0E°2 adA-sseuisng
209°c0L pseog jooyos - Jun jusucdwo)d
622'21L'82 $ [EILOWILLIBACD)
Auanoy Aq sentigen
wie ] -Buo jo uonesolly
g9¢e'czl’lE § sapjiger] ue-buo |ejo |
169'¥20'C
160l 86£'e2e’l 6¥8'eSy'L 6¥8'eSY'L Lgv'oct 0L/0E/90  G6/1L0/L0 L/9 0008 G661 weliboid @Apuady| Juswalgey
0vz'v68°1L sAEoT penooy
169°Gve sjgefed esea/sa)ON [B10L
69.°061 810'6 1y8'661 Ly8'661 96€0¥ LL/SL/90  90/L0/60 Ausuend  0€S'E 8002 aseyoind juswdinbg
826'vS ¢ 606'V. $ 28621 $ Lle8'62L $ 19892 § LL/SLI90  90/1L0/60 Apeuend %095V 9002 aseyoind justudinb3
:9|qeAed esea/s8IoN
“huipuelsing  painsy panssj pazuoyiny  juswhed s1eq panssj sereq [ATE
sanljiqel wia ] -BuoT jo junowy fedipuud Aunmen ajed 1s8I8jU| 1saI8jy|
01-6002 leuid BAI08lT

Z abed
N Mqiux3

6002 ‘0€ sunp papug Jjesp

LINN ININOJINOD ANV LNIINNUIAO0O ANUVINIEd
SALLIMNAVIT WNIL-ONOT ¥IHLO ANV SISV ‘SANOE 40 ITNAIHOS

VINIDYIA ‘SLHOIFH TTVINOT0D 40 ALID

70



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit N
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2009
School
School Capital Total
Operating Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 5,114,101 § - $ 5,114,101
Other receivable 54,322 - 54,322
Due from other governments 1,446,656 - 1,446,656
Due from primary governments - 172,964 172,964
Inventories 37,346 - 37,346
Other 1,628 - 1,628
Restricted cash - 890,340 890,340
Total assets $ 6,654,063 § 1,063,304 § 7,717,357
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 108,479 $ 259,446 $ 457,925
Accrued liabilities 3,006,208 - 3,006,208
Due to primary government 394,518 - 394,518
Deferred revenue 20,581 - 20,581
Total liabilities 3,619,786 259,446 3,879,232
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Inventories 37,346 - 37,346
Capital outlay - 803,858 803,858
Unreserved:
Designated for encumbrances 367,225 - 357,225
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 1,691,894 - 1,691,894
Undesignated 947,802 - 947,802
Total fund balances 3,034,267 803,858 3,838,125
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 6,664,053 § 1,063,304 § 7,717,357
Total fund balances $ 3,838,125
Amounts reported for the School Board's governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Governmental capital assets $ 31,234,203
Less: accumulated depreciation (13,611,338)
Net capital assets 17,622,865
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds.
Compensated absences (573,156)
Other postemployment benefits (366,968)
Retirement incentive program (130,451)
(1,070,575)
Net assets of the School Board's governmental activities $ 20,390,415
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit O
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
School
School Capital Total
Operating Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 546,183 & - $ 546,183
Use of money and property 12,036 - 12,036
Miscellaneous 255,358 - 255,358
Appropriation from primary government 18,767,898 1,434,709 20,202,607
Intergovernmental 15,817,226 - 15,817,225
Total revenues 35,398,700 1,434,709 36,833,409
Expenditures:
Education:
Administrative 1,601,316 - 1,601,316
Instruction 25,897,796 - 25,897,796
School plant 3,100,805 - 3,100,805
Transportation 677,176 - 677,176
Food service 970,609 - 970,609
Purchase of textbooks 169,652 - 169,652
Property, plant and materials 2,167,055 - 2,167,055
Reimbursement to primary government 883,248 - 883,248
Capital outlay - 2,152,063 2,152,063
Total expenditures 35,467,657 2,152,063 37,619,720
Net change in fund balances (68,957) (717,354) (786,311)
Fund Balances, beginning 3,103,224 1,621,212 4,624,436
Fund Balances, ending $ 3,034,267  § 803,858 $ 3,838,125
Net change in fund balances $ (786,311)
Reconciliation of amounts reported for governmental activities
in the Statement of Activities:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays were more
than depreciation in the current period.
Expenditures for capital assets $ 3,639,692
Less depreciation expense (651,271)
Excess of capital outlays over depreciation ' 2,888,421
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Change in compensated absences 251,098
Other postemployment benefits (366,968)
Change in retirement incentive program : 393,776
' 277,906
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 2,380,016
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit P
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SCHOOL OPERATING FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Variance With
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Qver (Under)
Revenues:
Revenue from local sources:
Charges for services:

Cafeteria 635106 $ 546,183 § 546,183 $ -
Use of money and property:

Interest on investments 122,000 12,036 12,036 -
Miscellaneous 195,970 255,358 255,358 -
Appropriation from primary government 18,741,936 18,767,898 18,767,898 -

Total revenue from local sources 19,695,012 19,581,475 19,581,475 -
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth of Virginia:
Categorical aid:
Basic school aid 8,209,995 8,209,644 8,209,644 -
State sales tax 2,796,284 2,482,983 2,485,814 2,831
Other 3,834,819 3,732,590 3,732,590 -
14,841,098 14,425,217 14,428,048 2,831
Revenue from the federal government:
Categorical aid:
Title | Grant 265,178 263,841 263,841 -
Title V! B Grant 577,575 619,480 619,480 -
Other 456,872 461,855 505,856 44,001
1,299,625 1,345,176 1,389,177 44,001
Total intergovernmental 16,140,723 15,770,393 15,817,225 46,832
Total revenues 35,835,735 35,351,868 35,398,700 46,832
Expenditures:
Education:
Administration 1,666,187 1,611,693 1,601,316 (10,377)
Instruction 27,306,510 25,937,877 25,897,796 (40,081)
School plant 3,208,672 3,135,944 3,100,805 (35,139)
Transportation 693,130 678,035 677,176 (859)
Food service 924,719 929,805 970,609 40,804
Purchase of textbooks 218,913 220,654 169,652 (51,002)
Property, plant and materials 1,966,500 1,678,849 2,167,055 488,206
Contingencies 440,000 1,450,000 - (1,450,000)
Reimbursement to primary government 490,823 788,730 883,248 94,518
Total expenditures 36,91 5,454 36,431,587 35,467,657 (963,930)
Net change in fund balance (1,079,719) (1,079,719) (68,957) 1,010,762
Fund Balance, beginning 1,079,719 1,079,719 3,103,224 2,023,505
Fund Balance, ending - $ - $ 3,034267 $ 3,034,267
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit Q
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - SCHOOL BOARD
AGENCY FUND
June 30, 2009
School
Activity
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments 289,365
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 289,365
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Exhibit R
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - SCHOOL BOARD
AGENCY FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Balance Balance
Department July 1, 2008 Additions Deductions __June 30, 2009

SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 311,250 $ 662,146 $ 684,040 § 289,365

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 311259 $ 662,146 $ 684040 $ 289,365

75



STATISTICAL SECTION



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

STATISTICAL SECTION
CONTENTS

The statistical section of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information presented in the financial statements, note disclosures

and required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health. This information
has not been audited by the independent auditor.

Contents Tables

Financial Trends
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the City's financial performance and well being have changed over time. 1-4

Revenue Capacity
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the City's most
significant local revenue source, the property tax, as well as other revenue sources. 5-10

Debt Capacity
These tables present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City's current level of outstanding debt and the City's
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 11-12

Demographic and Economic Information
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the City's financial
activities take place. 13-14

Operating Information
These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs. 15-16

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial report for the relevant year. The City implemented
GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003; tables presenting government-wide information include
information beginning in that year.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Table 5
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
Last Ten Calendar Years
Real Property
Residental Multi-Family Commercial Public Public
Year Property(1) Property Property Service(2) Safety Total
2000 $ 559,964,500 $ 31,008,100 $ 307,983,800 $ 29,317,184 $ 282,000 $ 928,555,584
2001 567,063,500 31,040,300 319,052,900 31,622,949 5,580,300 954,359,949
2002 625,789,300 34,254,700 340,626,600 32,338,602 6,760,500 1,039,769,702
2003 683,159,900 38,005,200 346,457,300 32,250,270 3,457,900 1,103,330,570
2004 681,053,100 42,963,800 384,550,700 31,003,999 3,457,900 1,143,029,599
2005 693,044,400 42,963,900 399,365,900 30,383,492 3,457,900 1,169,215,592
2006 814,763,800 85,367,800 445,687,100 28,182,168 - 1,374,000,868
2007 829,706,600 85,303,900 462,662,600 28,857,670 - 1,406,530,770
2008 1,025,744,200 97,651,400 530,801,900 26,781,992 - 1,680,979,492
2009 1,029,811,100 97,597,000 546,792,700 28,481,719 - 1,702,682,519

Notes:
(1) Assessed at 100% of fair market value, which is estimated actual value.

(2) Based on valuations established by the State Corporation Commission.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA
Table 6
DIRECT TAX RATES
Last Ten Calendar Years
(Rate per $1,000 Assessed Value)

Real Public Public
Year Property Service Safety
2000 $ 1.20 $ 1.20 $ -
2001 1.20 1.20 0.20
2002 1.20 1.20 0.24
2003 1.20 1.20 0.24
2004 1.20 1.20 0.24
2005 1.20 1.20 0.24
2006 1.18 1.18 0.24
2007 1.18 1.18 0.24
2008 1.10 1.10 0.24
2009 1.10 1.10 0.24

Note:

(1) There is no overlapping government taxation.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current Year and Ten Years Ago
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2009

Table 14

Fiscal Year 2000

Employer Employees Rank Employees Rank
Wal-Mart 500 to 999 1 500 to 999 1
Colonial Heights School Board 500 to 999 2 250 to 499
City of Colonial Heights 250 to 499 3 250 to 499 3
Colonial Heights Operation 100 to 249 4
Red Lobster & Olive Garden 100 to 249 5
J.C. Penney Corporation, Inc. 100 to 249 6 100 to 249 4
Care Advantage 100 to 249 7
Home Depot, USA 100 to 249 8
Ukrop's Super Markets 100 to 248 9 100 to 249 10
Sears Roebuck & Company 100 to 249 10 100 to 249 5
Herbert L. Seal Etal 100 to 249 6
May Department Stores Company 100 to 249 7
Target Division of Dayton Huds Corp. 100 to 249 8
Specialty Care Services, Inc. 100 to 249 9

Source:

1 Virginia Employment Commission
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Page 1
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Federal
Federal Grantor/State Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA
Program Title Number Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Pass-through payments:
Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service:
Commodity Distribution 10.555 $ 41,680
Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 67,792
National School Lunch Program 10.555 250,509
318,301
Total Department of Agriculture 359,981
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Direct payment:
Office of Community Planning and Development:
Community Development Block Grants 14.218 95,804
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 95,804
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
Pass-through payments:
Bureau of Justice Assistance:
Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.579 457
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 32,587
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 4,095
37,139
Office of Victims of Crime:
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 49,288
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinguency Prevention
Enforcing Underage Drinking Program 16.727 11,700
Total Department of Justice 98,127
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Pass-through payments:
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration:
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants 20.601 8,823
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 6,337
Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20.607 7,374
22,534
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training
and Planning Grants 20.703 800
Total Department of Transportation 23,334
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

Page 2
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
Federal
Federal Grantor/State Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA
Program Title Number Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Direct payments:
Office of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Impact Aid 84.041 $ 15975
Pass-through payments:
Office of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 263,841
Education Technology State Grants 84.318 5,962
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 75,001
344,804
Office of English Language Acquisition:
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 2,232
Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services:
Special Education Cluster: 84.027 619,480
Special Education - Grants to States 84.173 14,514
Special Education - Preschool Grants 633,994
Office of Assistant Secretary for Vocational and Adult Education: 84.048 29,869
Career and Technical Education Basic Grants to States
1,026,874
Total Department of Education
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Pass-through payments:
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 93.991 587
Total Department of Health and Human Services 587
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Pass-through payments:
Department of Homeland Security
Citizen Corps 97.053 4,334
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 5,000
State Homeland Security Program 97.073 5,666
15,000
Total Department of Homeland Security
$ 1,619,707
Total Federal Awards Expended

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia (City) and the component unit, City of Colonial
Heights School Board, and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in,
or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Federal Financial Assistance — The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Public Law 104-
156) and OMB Circular A-133 define federal financial assistance as grants, loans, loan
guarantees, property (including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest
subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct appropriations or other assistance.
Nonmonetary deferral assistance including food commodities is considered federal
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
Federal financial assistance does not include direct federal cash assistance to individuals.

Direct Payments — Assistance received directly from the Federal government is classified as
direct payments on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Pass-through Payments — Assistance received in a pass-through relationship from entities
other than the Federal government is classified as pass-through payments on the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards. ‘

Major Programs — The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133
establish the criteria to be used in defining major programs. Major programs for the City
were determined using a risk-based approach in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance — The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA\) is a government-wide compendium of individual federal programs. Each program
included in the catalog is assigned a five-digit program identification number (CFDA
Number), which is reflected in the accompanying schedule.

Cluster of Programs — Closely related programs that share common compliance
requirements are grouped into clusters of programs. A cluster of programs is considered as
one federal program for determining major programs. The following are the clusters
administered by the City: Child Nutrition Cluster and Special Education Cluster.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Note 2. Non-Cash Assistance

The City participated in a federal program in which non-cash benefits are provided through the state
to eligible program participants.

Food Distribution Program (CFDA Number 10.555) — The value of food commodities was calculated
using the U. S. Department of Agriculture’s Food and Nutrition Service commodity price lists. The
accompanying schedule includes commodity distributions of $41,680 for CFDA Number 10.555.

Note 3. Other

The City’s Food Stamp and Health and Human Service federal programs are administered by the
County of Chesterfield, Virginia (County). Since the County receives funds directly from the
awarding agencies on behalf of the City and the County administers the programs entirely, the Food
Stamp Program and Health and Human Services federal programs are not included in the City’s
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. These expenditures are reflected in the County’s
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE '
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Members of City Council
City of Colonial Heights, Virginia

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia (City), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated December 10,
2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications
for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's intemal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as
discussed below, we identified a deficiency in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be a significant deficiency.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow managementor
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
City's financial statements that is more than inconsequential, will not be prevented or detected by
the City’s internal control.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will
not be prevented or detected by the City’s intemal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily
disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However,
we believe that the significant deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as item 09-01 is a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. We also performed tests of
compliance with the program specific requirements as set forth in the Specifications for Audits of
Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of
Virginia and the Virginia Department of Education. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions and specifications was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

The City's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter
dated December 10, 2009.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, the
Auditor of Public Accounts, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

PBGH e

Harrisonburg, Virginia
December 10, 2009

102



RSM McGladrey Network

An independently Owned Member

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

A LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP
www.pbgh.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
' IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Members of City Council
City of Colonial Heights, Virginia

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia, (City) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns,
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia that are applicable to
each of its major Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The City’'s major Federal
programs are identified in the Summary of Independent Auditors’ Results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major Federal programs is the
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s
compliance based on our audit. :

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and the Specifications for
Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards, specifications and OMB Circular A-133 require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major Federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City's compliance with those requirements, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with
those requirements. -

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to Federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major Federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in the City's internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a Federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or
combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City’s ability to administer a Federal
program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a Federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the City’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a Federal program will not be prevented or detected by the City’s intemal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of City Council, management, the Auditor
of Public Accounts, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

PBGH....,

Harrisonburg, Virginia
December 10, 2009
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA
Page 1
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

I. SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements:
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified v Yes No
Significant deficiency identified that is not
considered to be a material weakness Yes

None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted Yes N

0

- |

Federal awards:
Internal control over major programs:

Material weaknesses identified Yes No
Significant deficiency identified that is not

N
considered to be a material weakness Yes v No

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section
510(a) of Circular A-133? Yes v No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Special Education Cluster:

84.027 Special Education — Grants to States
84.173 Special Education — Preschool Grants

Child Nutrition Cluster:

10.553 School Breakfast Program
10.555 National School Lunch Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs
$300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes v No
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA
Page 2
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE
REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Material Weakness in Intemal Control

09-01: Material Weakness in Intemal Control over the Financial Reporting of Property
Taxes

Requirement: Complete and accurate supporting schedules and timely reconciliations must
agree to the general ledger for accurate financial reporting. Accounting tasks such as
monthly/quarterly reconciliations, cross-checks and reviews play a key role in proving the
accuracy of accounting data and financial information that comprise interim and year-end
financial statements.

Condition: In the process of performing our audit, we were provided with schedules

attempting to reconcile the City's largest revenue source, property taxes. Upon receiving

these schedules, it was noted that there were material differences included in the

recongiliation that were categorized as unidentified differences, in both Real Estate and

Personal Property taxes. Amounts are made available in the form of quarterly reports from

the collecting office and are entered into the reconciliation, and an attempt is made to agree

these amounts to the general ledger. However, at this point, if there are differences.
between reported collections and the general ledger, they are not investigated further. As

noted, the differences were material amounts, and although some of the differences offset

each other, classification errors are apparent.

Effect: We observed that the differences noted above are considered satisfactory by the
City, and there is little accountability for attempting to identify these annual differences. We
consider the lack of attempt in identifying these potentially material differences in the City’s
largest revenue source to be a material weakness.

Recommendation: We strongly suggest that the collecting department and the reporting
department work in concert to reconcile taxes timelieron a quarterly basis, in order to make
an effort to identify these differences and correct them, prior to providing a reconciliation for
audit. This may involve making adjustments to accounts more frequently during the year,
and performing more frequent reviews of the general ledger throughout the year. Inevitably,
the accountability for the reconciliation of property taxes to the general ledger should be
more clearly defined, and material differences need not be considered satisfactory.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA
Page 3
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE
REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS (Continued)

Compli‘ance Finding

None

107



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Identifying Number:

09-01
Finding:

Complete and accurate supporting schedules and timely reconciliations for property taxes that agree to
the general ledger were not provided.

Corrective Actions Taken or Planned:

The City has instituted an additional modification to the tax revenue software that will eliminate State
provided tax relief from the reconciliation process, and is exploring the transfer of responsibility for this
reconciliation. Management understands the need for timely and accurate reconciliation of tax
revenues and will continue to monitor this procedure.
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2009
The prior year audit findings, as reported in the prior year audit’s Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs have been fully corrected as noted below.
FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
A. Material Weakness in Intemal Control
08-01 Material weakness in intemal control over the financial reporting of property taxes.
No corrective action taken

08-02 Material weakness in the audit preparedness of the School Board.

Corective action taken

B. Compliance Finding
08-03 Submission of unclaimed property of the School Board.

Corrective action faken
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